B0ss Valley D
Parameie Anheriy

MEMBER AGENCIES

Town of Corte Madera
Town of Fairfax

Kégg'ﬂ%'f grgsagﬁ‘ BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
ToyTownof Ross Thursday, February 6, 2020 @ 6:30 p.m. Kentfield Fire District
Sleepy'Hiatlow Fireibist, 1004 Sir Francis Drake Blvd. Kentfield, CA 94904
1. Call to Order- Board Chair
2. Roll Call- Executive Officer
3. Pledge of Allegiance — Board Chair
4. Open Time for Public Input. Members of the Public have an opportunity to comment on items not on

tonight's agenda. Each member of the public has two minutes in which to speak. Board members and
staff are not able to engage in dialogue, answer questions or act on any of the items brought forward. At
the Board'’s discretion, matters brought forth may be placed on a future agenda.

5. Review and approve Meeting Minutes: Staff recommends that the Board approve the meeting minutes
from the December 5, 2019 meeting.

6. NEW BUSINESS

a. Presentation of current fiscal mid-year budget. Recommendation: Receive the report, direct staff as

necessary.

b. Adjustment of regular Board meetings: Recommendation: Receive staff report and
recommendation to move to quarterly Board meetings and any additional meetings to meet budget
timelines annually.

7. OLD BUSINESS

a. Adopt and execute Subcontract for Services Provided By Marin County Fire
Department and Ross Valley Fire Department to Ross Valley Paramedic
Authority: Recommendation: Adopt and ratify Subcontract as proposed.

8. CQlI Reports (Quarterly). Staff recommends that the Board receive any oral/written updates from the CQl
managers. Recommendation: Direct staff as needed.
a. Marin County: Heather Price Fair
b. Central Marin Fire: Liz Froneberger

9. Review RVPA Expense Sheet (attached).
10. Transport Billing Data Review (attached).

11. Announcements/Future Agenda Items.

12. Adjournment. Submitted, /s/ Jason Weber, Executive Officer

This agenda was posted in accordance with #54954.2 and #54954.3 of the Government Code. AMERICAN SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETERS AND ASSISTIVE
LISTENING DEVICES MAY BE REQUESTED BY CALLING (415)473-4100 AT LEAST 72 HOURS IN ADVANCE. COPIES OF DOCUMENTS ARE AVAILABLE IN ACCESSIBLE FORMATS UPON REQUEST.

Availability of Documents: Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the RVPA regarding any item on this agenda will be made
available for public inspection at the Customer Service Counter at Marin County Fire Department Woodacre Station 33 Castlerock Ave,
Woodacre 94973, during normal business hours.




THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC AUTHORITY
Held a meeting:
6:30 p.m. Thursday, December 5, 2019
Kentfield Fire District
1004 Sir Francis Drake Blvd., Kentfield, CA. 94904

1. Call to Order- Chair Reed called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

2. Roll Call
Board Member Attendance: Chair Reed, Bailey, Corbet, Finn (arrived 6:40),
Hillmer , Meagor, Przybylski, Salmen
Staff: Weber, Froneberger, McTigue, Price-Fair, Shurtz

3. Pledge of Allegiance

4. Open Time for Public Input

Mr. Fronenberger stated the Hope for Haiti representatives sent a “Thank You” for
the donated ambulance.

Executive Officer Weber stated he would like to add the CQI Report under agenda
item #9.

5. Review and/or approve Meeting Minutes: From September 5, 2019

M/s, Meagor/Hillmer, to approve the minutes of September 5, 2019 as corrected.
Ayes: All  Absent: Finn Abstain: Przybylski

6. NEW BUSINESS
a. 2020 Board Positions

Executive Officer Weber presented a staff report. The rotation would include
Boardmember Corbet taking the Chair position and Boardmember Hillmer taking
over as Vice Chair. The rotation would occur in January.

M/s, Hillmer/Bailey, to accept the staff recommendation.
Ayes: All  Absent: Finn

b. Resolution Recognizing Otis Guy, EMS instructor
Executive Officer Weber presented a staff report. Ms. Fronenberger invited

everyone to attend a celebration for Mr. Guy on December 18" at Tarrapin Station at
5:30 p.m.



M/s, Meagor/Bailey, to adopt the Resolution recognizing Otis Guy, EMS instructor,
for many years of EMS education to the RVPA agencies.
Ayes: All

7. OLD BUSINESS
a. Update from Executive Director on contract renewals and legal work

Executive Officer Weber presented the staff report. He continues to work with legal
counsel and sent the draft documents to the respective agencies for ratification. The
Finance Committee has reviewed the contracts. He will submit the contacts at the
next meeting for the Board to approve.

8. Review RVPA Expense Sheet

Executive Officer Weber presented a staff report. He noted there was nothing out of
the ordinary. He will provide a mid-year update at the next meeting.

Boardmember Selman asked Executive Officer Weber what he looks at in these
reports. Executive Officer Weber stated he looks for anything out of the ordinary.

Boardmember Przybylski had a question about the use of Epi pens
9. Transport Billing Data Review/CQI Report

Executive Officer Weber presented a staff report. He referred to the column titled
“Net Payments” and stated it appears there has been a bit of a decline the last few
months. He will ask Battalion Chief McTigue to follow-up. Otherwise, there is
nothing out of the ordinary.

Boardmember Selman asked if “Net Payments” correlates with the number of calls.
Executive Officer Weber stated not always. Much of it has to do with the number of
Medicare/Medical patients transported vs. private payers. There is some Federal
reimbursement for Medical patients through the GEMT and IGT Programs.

Ms. Fronenberger reported on the following: 1) Dispositions; 2) Transport Mode from
Scene; 3) Non Transports; 4) Call by City; 5) Response by City; 6) Transports by
Destination; 7) Facility. She and Ms. Price-Fair are finally satisfied with the new
PCR program and the reports that are being generated. There are more patient
care records being generated and she has confidence in the numbers. She
discussed Central Marin Fire Department vs. RVPA data.

Boardmember Hillmer had a question about “Cancel Prior to Arrival on Scene”. Ms.
Price-Fair provided the answer.

Boardmember Selman had a question about “Transfer to Landing Zone”. Battalion
Chief McTigue stated this was an inter-facility transfer by a helicopter.



Executive Officer Weber noted there were 63 transports from San Quentin. Ms.
Fronenberger stated that includes transports from San Quentin Village- they are not
all from the prison. This is less than one a day. She met with representatives of the
prison and will continue to keep an eye on these transports. Boardmember Meagor
asked about the financial impacts. Battalion Chief McTigue explained the
reimbursement rates. Executive Officer Weber noted they cannot collect from a
state prison.

10. Announcements/Future Agenda ltems

Ms. Fronenberger congratulated Ms. Price-Fair for her work on the very successful
Trauma Symposium held at Marin General Hospital in October. The event was sold-
out.

Battalion Chief McTigue (?) reported that the SMART train route will go into Larkspur
very soon. Seven engine companies participated in a drill simulating a fire in the
tunnel and a rescue out of the tunnel. Marin General Hospital was also involved.

Executive Officer Weber asked the Board to consider holding quarterly meetings. It
would line up with Budget Hearings.

M/s, Bailey/ Przybylski, to cancel the January, 2020 Board meeting.
Ayes: All

11. Adjournment- Chair Reed adjourned the meeting at 7:10 p.m. The next Board
meeting would be Thursday, February 6, 2020.
Respectfully submitted,

Toni DeFrancis,
Recording Secretary



RVPA Staff Report

TO: RVPA Board
FROM: Jason Weber, Executive Officer
SUBJECT: Mid-Year Budget Update FY 19-20

MEETING DATE: February 6, 2020

BACKGROUND
The Budget Report as of December 31, 2019 shows RVPA financials at mid-
year.

DISCUSSION
RVPA has received the first of two property tax payments, which are tracking on
budget. Transport billing is at $459K with only 44% left remaining to collect.

Expenses are tracking below expected at mid-year. This is due to invoices not
being received prior to December 315t. Over all, we expect to be on track to
complete the year at or below our budget.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Accept the report, no action required.

Attachments
1. Budget Report



City of Larkspur, CA

Fund: 705 - ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC
Revenue
705-1204-101004
705-1205-200002
705-1205-200003
705-1205-200004
705-1205-200007
705-1205-200009
705-1205-200010
705-1205-200013
705-1207-103000
705-1207-103005

INVESTMENT EARNINGS
KENTFIELD FIRE DIST

CITY OF LARKSPUR
COUNTY SER AREA 27
TOWN OF FAIRFAX

TOWN OF ROSS

SLEEPY HOLLOW FIRE DIST
SAN ANSELMO

OTHER REVENUE
TRANSPORT BILLING

Revenue Total:

Budget Report

Account Summary
For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 12/31/2019

Expense
705-0046-000-003000
705-0046-001-012001
705-0046-001-012003
705-0046-001-012012
705-0046-001-012031
705-0046-001-012038
705-0046-001-012039
705-0046-001-016000
705-0046-001-018000
705-0046-002-021000
705-0046-002-024000
705-0046-002-026000
705-0046-002-028002
705-0046-002-028003
705-0046-002-028004
705-0046-002-028010
705-0046-004-040000
705-0046-004-090002
705-0046-005-053000
705-0046-006-064000
705-0046-007-073008
705-0046-007-074000
705-0046-007-075002
705-0046-008-087001
705-0046-008-087002
705-0046-008-087008

PART TIME

FINANCIAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVI...

ALS BACK UP

CONSULTANT

DEFIBRILLATORS

TRANSPORT BILLING FEES
PARCEL TAX TRANSFER TO CM
LEGAL SERVICES

COUNTY CONTRACT
AUTOMOTIVE FUELS

PRINTED & PHOTOGRAPHIC
OFFICE SUPPLIES

ENGINE MEDIC PROGRAM - RVFD
ENGINE MEDIC PROGRAM - LARKSPUR
EMS TRAINING/SUPPLY REIMB
DISPOSABLE MEDICAL SUPPLIES
POSTAGE

MISC

AUTOMOTIVE EQUIPMENT REPAIRS
INSURANCE/MISC

TAX COLLECTION SERVICE

RENT

PMTS TO OTHR AGENCIES

OTHER EQUIPMENT/BUILDING
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT
OTHER EQUIPMENT

Expense Total:
Fund: 705 - ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC Surplus (Deficit):

Report Surplus (Deficit):

Variance
Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable Percent
Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity (Unfavorable) Remaining
2,200.00 2,200.00 0.00 9,244.21 7,044.21  420.19%
223,485.33 223,485.33 122,034.55 122,926.41 -100,558.92 45.00 %
599,324.40 599,324.40 330,567.16 333,279.97 -266,044.43 44.39 %
57,824.55 57,824.55 32,359.25 32,638.36 -25,186.19 43.56 %
296,285.02 296,285.02 162,336.35 163,731.48 -132,553.54 44.74 %
75,809.98 75,809.98 41,812.93 42,171.70 -33,638.28 4437 %
72,067.05 72,067.05 39,893.70 40,238.11 -31,828.94 44.17 %
471,711.60 471,711.60 257,200.90 259,330.86 -212,380.74 45.02 %
5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 -5,000.00 100.00 %
819,880.00 819,880.00 55,062.45 459,579.18 -360,300.82 43.95 %
2,623,587.93 2,623,587.93 1,041,267.29 1,463,140.28 -1,160,447.65 44.23 %
7,210.00 7,210.00 120.00 840.00 6,370.00 88.35 %
48,745.78 48,745.78 19,593.00 22,974.75 25,771.03 52.87%
64,375.00 64,375.00 9,949.81 25,775.11 38,599.89 59.96 %
5,150.00 5,150.00 2,841.25 2,841.25 2,308.75 4483 %
9,270.00 9,270.00 0.00 11,726.52 -2,456.52  -26.50 %
51,500.00 51,500.00 3,540.23 17,402.36 34,097.64 66.21 %
9,164.00 9,164.00 0.00 0.00 9,164.00 100.00 %
12,360.00 12,360.00 0.00 0.00 12,360.00  100.00 %
1,687,118.00 1,687,118.00 0.00 0.00 1,687,118.00 100.00 %
10,300.00 10,300.00 0.00 0.00 10,300.00  100.00 %
1,030.00 1,030.00 0.00 0.00 1,030.00 100.00 %
206.00 206.00 0.00 0.00 206.00 100.00 %
243,080.00 243,080.00 0.00 0.00 243,080.00 100.00 %
175,433.00 175,433.00 0.00 0.00 175,433.00 100.00 %
90,000.00 90,000.00 0.00 11,587.00 78,413.00 87.13%
77,250.00 77,250.00 5,911.65 29,349.00 47,901.00 62.01 %
515.00 515.00 0.00 637.11 -122.11 -23.71%
1,030.00 1,030.00 31.00 31.00 999.00 96.99 %
7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,000.00 100.00 %
5,400.00 5,400.00 0.00 0.00 5,400.00  100.00 %
8,240.00 8,240.00 5,934.80 5,934.80 2,305.20 27.98 %
30,900.00 30,900.00 0.00 0.00 30,900.00 100.00 %
0.00 0.00 9,515.55 9,515.55 -9,515.55 0.00 %
2,060.00 2,060.00 78.95 473.70 1,586.30 77.00 %
75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00 0.00 75,000.00 100.00 %
0.00 0.00 0.00 840.29 -840.29 0.00 %
2,622,336.78 2,622,336.78 57,516.24 139,928.44 2,482,408.34 94.66 %
1,251.15 1,251.15 983,751.05 1,323,211.84 1,321,960.69 05,659.65 %
1,251.15 1,251.15 983,751.05 1,323,211.84 1,321,960.69 05,659.65 %

2/4/2020 10:24:10 AM

Page 1 of 3




Budget Report

Account Typ...

Fund: 705 - ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC
Revenue
Expense

Fund: 705 - ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC Surplus (Deficit):

Report Surplus (Deficit):

For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 12/31/2019

Group Summary

Variance
Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable Percent
Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity (Unfavorable) Remaining
2,623,587.93 2,623,587.93 1,041,267.29 1,463,140.28 -1,160,447.65 4423 %
2,622,336.78 2,622,336.78 57,516.24 139,928.44 2,482,408.34 94.66 %
1,251.15 1,251.15 983,751.05 1,323,211.84 1,321,960.69 05,659.65 %
1,251.15 1,251.15 983,751.05 1,323,211.84 1,321,960.69 05,659.65 %

2/4/2020 10:24:10 AM

Page 2 of 3



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 12/31/2019

Fund Summary

Variance

Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable

Fund Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity (Unfavorable)
705 - ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC 1,251.15 1,251.15 983,751.05 1,323,211.84 1,321,960.69
Report Surplus (Deficit): 1,251.15 1,251.15 983,751.05 1,323,211.84 1,321,960.69

2/4/2020 10:24:10 AM Page 3 of 3



RVPA Staff Report

TO: RVPA Board
FROM: Jason Weber, Executive Officer
SUBJECT: Regular Board Meeting Scheduling

MEETING DATE: February 6, 2020

BACKGROUND

Ross Valley Paramedic Authority Board has historically met monthly. Over the last
24 months meetings have regularly been cancelled secondary to little or no
actionable Board items. Your Board has worked to create a fiscally stable and
operationally sound emergency medical services delivery system. We are in our
first year of a four-year tax cycle with no major changes forecasted in the delivery
system or administrative functions.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff is recommending moving to quarterly meetings with a regularly scheduled
meeting to meet budget adoption timelines. The following is the proposed
meeting schedule occurring on the first Thursday of the following months:

March

May — Draft Budget presented
June — Budget Adoption
September

December

FISCAL IMPACT
Fiscal impacts are minimal and would include reduced costs for Board stipends
and reduced staff time with meeting preparation.



RVPA Staff Report

TO: RVPA Board
FROM: Jason Weber, Executive Officer
SUBJECT: Sub-Contracts RVFD and MCFD

MEETING DATE: February 6, 2020

BACKGROUND

The Ross Valley Paramedic Authority has had a contract with the Marin County
Fire Department to provide paramedic staffing on an ambulance, operational
support, CQIl and Medical Direction since the early 1980’s. In the early 2000’s
paramedics were added to engine companies in the Ross Valley Fire Department.
The attached two sub-contracts are reflective of an effort to update all contracts
with member agencies to ensure documents are contemporary and reflective of
services provided. The RVPA finance sub-committee and RVPA Fire Chiefs have
reviewed the documents. The attached documents have gone before the sub-
contractors Boards and approved.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends your Board ratifies and executes the sub-agreements and
authorizes the Board President to sign.

FISCAL IMPACT

The associated costs of the sub-contracts have been factored into the current
fiscal year adopted budget and remaining 3years of the existing RVPA parcel tax.



Subcontract For Life Support And Administrative
Services Provided By Marin County Fire
Department To Ross Valley Paramedic Authority

July 1, 2019




SUBCONTRACT
TABLE OF CONTENTS

RECITAIS. ...ttt e e et e e e e e e b e e nra e re e anreeree e 1
Y0 o] 1 1 (ot USSR 2
SECTION 1.  Term Of This SUDCONTIACE .......ccccoueiiiiiiiesiee e 2
SECTION 2.  Earlier Subcontracts SUPErseded..........ccoveverreieivenesiieseese e seesee s 2
SECTION 3.  MCFD As Independent CONraCtor...........ccccevvrieieenienieseenesee e 2
SECTION 4.  Conformance With 1999 CoNntract..........cccccevveveerveiesieseese e 2
SECTION 5. Terms DEfiNed ........oiuiiiiiiiieiiee e e e 2
SECTION 6.  Services TO Be RENUEred.........ccocouvieerieiieiieir e 2
SECTION 7. Compensation For Services Rendered..........cccoocevveiiiieiinnciin e 3
SECTION 8.  Performance REVIEW .........c.ocvveiieieieeiie e 3
SECTION 9. Health & Safety CONCEINS ......cceiiiiieieiieseeric e s 3
SECTION 10. EMS POliCies & ProCeAUIES.........cuevverieeiesiesireie s esie e e ste e 3
SECTION 11. Vehicle & Records INSPECLIONS........cccoervereerienieiieiesie e 3
SECTION 12. Changes To Applicable Federal Or State Statutes............cccccvevvvrvernenne. 4
SECTION 13. Changes To 1999 Agreement Affecting This Subcontract.................... 4
SECTION 14. Hold Harmless & Indemnification.............ccccocvevviiienienc e, 4
SECTION 15, INSUFBNCE ....eeiieieiieeiee ittt ettt ettt sie et e sen e sbeeseneenee e 4
SECTION 16. Conflict Of INEreSt .......cecveiieiieie e 4
SECTION 17. ASSIGNADTIILY ...eeeeiiiicieece e e e 5
SECTION 18. Dispute ReSOIULION PrOCESS........cccveiveririieiiesireieseesie e seesie e e nae e 5
SECTION 19, DefaUlt......ociiieieiectceciee et 5
SECTION 20. Equal Opportunity & Non-Discrimination ............ccccceevveviverenieesvennenn 6
SECTION 21, TermMINAION.....cceiiiiiiiierieeie sttt sttt sre e enes 6
SECTION 22. AMENAMENTS ....eevieeieiieeie e sieesie e se ettt ste e sraesee s e e e sae s e sneeneenes 6
SECTION 23. Breach & ENfOrCement ........ccoovuiiiiiieiiiesee e e 6
SECTION 24. SeVerability .........ccoeiiiiiiiie et 6
SECTION 25. GOVEIMING LAW ..eiiviiiiiiieiie sttt sttt st 7
SECTION 26. Parties’ RepreSentations..........cccvcuevieereriiesieesireieseesieseeseessesseesseessesnes 7
SECTION 27. Binding UPON SUCCESSOIS ......ceiuiruiriieeiesiiesieesieaseesieessesseesseeseessessseeseesses 7
SECTION 28. HEAAINGS ...ecvveiieeiieeie ettt ra e sreeneenes 7
SECTION 29, CONSENT ...ttt ettt st se e b e e e 7
SECTION 30. Designated RepPreSENtatiVES .........c.ccverveerereerireieseesesieseeseeseesreeneeenes 7
SECTION 31, INOUCES ..ccuveiiieitieitieiie sttt sttt sttt sttt be s beebe e sre e e enes 7
SECTION 32, APPENUICES. ...ccueeiierieiieesieeeesteeste e steeste e staesteaseesraesseaseesseesseeneesseensennes 8
SECTION 33. Execution IN COUNTEIPAITS ......cceeeeieerieriesieesie e siee et 8
SECTION 34. EFfECtIVE DALE ......eceveiieeieeeceese et 8
APPENDIX A DEFINITION OF TERMS........ccoiitiiieiieeie e 10
APPENDIX B PARAMEDIC SERVICE AREA........ccooiiiieeee e, 13
APPENDIX C MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS. .......ccoiiiieieieiene e, 14
APPENDIX D ADMINSTRATIVE SERVICES.........cccooiiiiiee e, 18
APPENDIX E CONTINUOUS QUALITY IMPROVEMENT (CQI) SERVICES..... 19
APPENDIX F COMPENSATION ....ociiiiiitieieiesiese et 20
APPENDIX G STANDARD INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS ......c.ccooviiviieinienen, 22
APPENDIX H GENERAL LIABILITY ENDORSEMENT FORM ......ccccovvvviniennnn, 24

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract
July 1, 2019



Subcontract

This Subcontract is entered into and is effective July 1, 2019 (the “Effective Date”)
between the ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY (hereinafter
“RVPA”) and the COUNTY OF MARIN, by and through its MARIN COUNTY FIRE
DEPARTMENT (hereinafter “MCFD”) for basic and advanced life support services and certain
administrative services provided by MCFD to RVPA as set forth herein.

Recitals

A. RVPA was formed in 1982 pursuant to a joint powers agreement by and among
the Town of Corte Madera, the City of Larkspur, the Town of Ross, the Town of San Anselmo,
the Town of Fairfax, the Kentfield Fire Protection District, the Sleepy Hollow Fire Protection
District and the County of Marin for the purpose of having a single consolidated agency provide
paramedic/life support services throughout the Ross Valley and across jurisdictional boundaries.

B. RVPA and the County of Marin on August 17, 1999 entered into a contract with
each other entitled “Agreement Advanced and Basic Life Support Service.” Under this 1999
Agreement, County contracted with RVPA for RVPA to provide basic and advanced life support
services within a designated service area consistent with minimum requirements promulgated by
County. The foregoing 1999 Agreement has been in full force and effect continuously from 1999
to the present, and RVPA for the past nineteen years has fully performed by satisfactorily
providing the specified life support services. County and RVPA will continue operating under
this 1999 Agreement for the foreseeable future on a year-to-year basis by mutual consent of the
parties.

C. RVPA, under its 1999 Agreement with County, is an independent contractor
which may subcontract for the life support/paramedic services it provides County so long as (i)
any subcontract contains minimum provisions specified by the 1999 Agreement; (ii) the
subcontracting party is qualified to render such services; (iii) the subcontracting procedures
follow established County guidelines; and (iv) the subcontract is both filed with and approved by
County. MCFD has been provided with a complete copy of the 1999 contract which is
incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

D. Pursuant to its aforementioned 1999 Agreement with the County, RVPA in prior,
multiple years has subcontracted with MCFD for the provision of life support/paramedic services
within a designated service area, as well as for certain administrative services.

E. It is the intention of the parties hereto that MCFD will continue to subcontract
with RVPA for the provision of the same life support/paramedic and administrative services.

NOW THEREFORE, the purpose and intent of this Subcontract is to set forth the current
terms, conditions, requirements and procedures that shall govern and control the provision of
basic and advanced life support services, as well as administrative services, by MCFD to RVPA
as authorized by the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Government Code Sections 6500, et seq.)
which expressly permits the parties to contract for such services with each other.

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract
July 1, 2019



Subcontract

RVPA and MCFD, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms and
conditions set forth below, hereby agree as follows:

SECTION 1. Term Of This Subcontract

This Subcontract shall commence on the above-stated Effective Date and shall continue
in full force and effect for an indefinite term until terminated as set forth below. In no event shall
this Subcontract extend beyond the life of the aforementioned 1999 Agreement between County
and RVPA.

SECTION 2. Earlier Subcontracts Superseded

This Subcontract supersedes all other earlier subcontracts between RVPA and MCFD
for the provision of life support services, which earlier subcontracts are hereby revoked,
terminated and are of no force or effect.

SECTION 3. MCFD As Independent Contractor

MCFD at all times and for all purposes under this Subcontract is an independent
contractor and shall not be deemed an agent, servant or employee of RVPA, nor is this
Subcontract to be construed as a partnership, joint venture or association by MCFD with RVPA.

SECTION 4. Conformance With 1999 Contract

RVPA is authorized to subcontract for the life support services specified under its 1999
Agreement with County provided that (i) any and all such subcontracts at a minimum contain the
provisions required by the County for such subcontracts; (ii) the subcontracting party is fully-
qualified to render such services; (iii) the subcontractor follows established County guidelines;
and (iv) the subcontract is approved in advance by County which shall not unreasonably
withhold such approval. To the extent possible, all such subcontracts shall be in a standardized,
consistent form with all common provisions equally applicable to all subcontractors. Fully-
executed copies of all subcontracts, including this Subcontract, shall be provided by RVPA to,
and be on file with, County.

SECTION 5. Terms Defined

Terms used throughout this Subcontract are defined in Appendix “A” attached hereto and
by this reference incorporated herein.

SECTION 6. Services To Be Rendered

Upon receipt of verbal authorization issued by County Communications, MCFD shall, for
the consideration set forth in this Subcontract, provide Basic and Advanced Life Support
Services to the assigned service area described in Appendix “B” attached hereto and by this
reference incorporated herein. Such services shall be provided in accordance with the Minimum
Requirements set forth in Appendix “C” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated
herein, as well as all policies and procedures contained in the Marin County Emergency Medical

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract .
July 1, 2019



Services Policy and Procedure Manual (as currently and periodically updated). MCFD also
agrees to provide to RVPA the administrative services set forth in Appendix “D” attached hereto
and incorporated herein by this reference. MCFD further agrees to provide for the Continuous
Quality Improvement (CQI) services as set forth in Appendix “E” attached hereto and
incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 7. Compensation For Services Rendered

The terms and conditions for compensation to MCFD for its life support and
administrative services provided under this Subcontract are set forth in Appendix “F” attached
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 8. Performance Review

RVPA reserves the right at any time to review MCFD’s performance under this
Subcontract, and agrees to provide to MCFD the results of its review. MCFD agrees to cooperate
with any and all requests for information and documents related to any such review and, if
necessary, to cooperate and provide material to County’s EMS Agency.

SECTION 9. Health & Safety Concerns

If any provisions of this Subcontract are violated by MCFD in a manner that presents a
possible or potential danger to the public health and safety, RVPA’s Executive Officer shall
notify County’s EMS Agency of the alleged violation by telephone and in writing. If MCFD fails
to correct the violation within fourteen (14) days after receipt of written notice, RVPA may
suspend this Subcontract until such violation has been corrected. The decision of RVPA as to the
existence of a contract violation and its resolution shall be final, but MCFD shall be permitted to
present its response to the RVPA’s Board of Directors either in writing or orally or both before
any such final decision is rendered.

SECTION 10. EMS Policies & Procedures

County’s Emergency Medical Services Policy and Procedures Manual shall guide the
performance of all of MCFD personnel when operating under this Subcontract. Copies shall be
maintained by MCFD, including revisions as they take place. MCFD shall ensure that drivers
and attendants are familiar with the contents of this Manual. MCFD shall not enact policies or
procedures that conflict with County's policies or procedures. Both RVPA and MCFD shall have
the opportunity to review and provide input during the formulation of all such County policies
applicable to this Subcontract.

SECTION 11. Vehicle & Records Inspections

MCFD upon reasonable notice given by RVPA shall make available all vehicles and
records involved in the performance of this Subcontract for purposes of inspection by RVPA
and/or County’s EMS Agency.

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract
July 1, 2019



SECTION 12. Changes To Applicable Federal Or State Statutes

RVPA and County reserve the right to modify their standards applicable herein to
conform with any changes in applicable Federal or State statutes. Notice of modifications shall
be mailed to MCFD’s Fire Chief at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of said
statutes (unless such statutes are urgency measures). MCFD will have thirty (30) days from time
of notification to institute changes unless a different time frame is agreed upon in writing by the
parties.

SECTION 13. Changes To 1999 Agreement Affecting This Subcontract

The parties hereby acknowledge and agree that termination or modification of RVPA'’s
1999 Agreement with County will affect this Subcontract. For example, termination of the 1999
Agreement would result in the immediate termination of this Subcontract and the cessation of all
life support and other services being provided hereunder. The parties therefore agree to work
together in advance of any changes to said 1999 Agreement in order to eliminate and/or
minimize any disruption to services and to provide for an orderly transition necessitated by any
such changes.

SECTION 14. Hold Harmless & Indemnification

RVPA and MCFD each agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other, and the
other’s officers, agents and employees, against any and all liabilities, injuries or damages caused
by the intentional or negligent acts, errors or omissions of their own respective employees,
agents or representatives in connection with their performance and duties under the terms and
provisions of this Subcontract. The duty to indemnify and hold harmless shall include the duty to
defend as set forth in California Civil Code Section 2778. In the event of concurrent negligence
or liability of the parties, liability shall be apportioned between RVPA and MCFD under the
doctrine of comparative fault as established under California law.

SECTION 15. Insurance

MCFD shall carry at its own expense during the full term of this Subcontract the
insurance coverages specified in Appendix “G” attached hereto and by this reference
incorporated herein. MCFD shall provide a current endorsement of such coverages (on the
general liability endorsement form attached hereto as Appendix “H”) to RVPA within ten (10)
days of this Subcontract being fully executed by each of the parties’ representatives set forth
below.

SECTION 16. Conflict Of Interest

Both RVPA and MCFD warrant and covenant that they presently have no interest in, nor
shall any interest be hereinafter acquired, in any matter which will render the services required
under the provisions of this Subcontract a violation of any applicable state, local or federal law.
RVPA and MCFD further warrant that no officer or employee of theirs has influenced or
participated in a decision to award this Subcontract which has or may confer a benefit, pecuniary
or otherwise, in a manner which would violate State law. In the event that any conflict of interest
or violation of this section should nevertheless hereafter arise, that party shall promptly notify

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -4



the other of the existence of the conflict such that all appropriate action immediately may be
undertaken.

SECTION 17. Assignability
MCEFD shall not assign all or any portion of this Subcontract.
SECTION 18. Dispute Resolution Process

Should any disagreement or dispute between RVPA and MCFD arise concerning
interpretation, implementation and/or enforcement of any of the terms or subject matter of this
Subcontract, the parties shall submit such dispute to mandatory mediation before an agreed upon
mediator, each party to pay an equal share of the mediation fees and each party to pay its own
attorneys’ fees and legal costs. Should RVPA and MCFD be unable to agree upon a mediator,
they shall agree upon a mediation service and shall have that service select a mediator for them.
Should mediation be unsuccessful, then RVPA and MCFD each agree that they shall submit their
dispute to binding arbitration before a mutually-agreeable arbitrator. If they cannot agree upon an
arbitrator, they shall select an arbitration service which shall select an arbitrator for them. RVPA
and MCFD each shall pay an equal portion of the arbitration fees and each party shall pay its
own attorneys’ fees and legal costs, it hereby being agreed that the arbitrator shall have no
authority to award attorneys’ fees or costs to any prevailing party. RVPA and MCFD hereby
expressly waive any and all rights to have disputes under this Subcontract decided by court
action, court trial, jury trial or any other legal action of any kind or type, other than the
mandatory mediation and binding arbitration process specified above. However, in emergency or
extraordinary circumstances, each or both parties may seek equitable or injunctive relief to
preserve the status quo pending occurrence of the mediation/arbitration process herein specified.
It is the express intent of both RVPA and MCFD to have any and all disputes under this
Subcontract resolved by the above-specified mediation/arbitration process and in as timely and
economical manner as possible.

SECTION 19. Default

Subject to any extensions of time by mutual consent of the parties in writing, any failure
of either party to timely perform any material obligation of this Subcontract shall constitute an
event of default as to that party, if (i) such defaulting party does not cure such failure within
thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice of default from the other party, where such
failure is of a nature that can be cured within such thirty (30) day period, or (ii) if such failure is
not of a nature which can be cured within a thirty (30) day period, the allegedly defaulting party
does not, within said thirty (3) day period, commence substantial efforts to cure such failure or
thereafter does not, within a reasonable period of time, prosecute to completion with diligence
and continuity the curing of the failure. The time to cure may be extended in writing at the
discretion of the party giving notice. Any notice of default given hereunder shall be served on the
other party and shall specify in detail the nature of the failure(s) in performance which the
noticing party claims constitutes the event of default and the manner in which such default may
be satisfactorily cured in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Subcontract. Failure of
a party to timely cure or commence and diligently prosecute to completion the cure of a material
default of this Subcontract shall entitle the non-defaulting party to terminate this Subcontract in

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -5



accordance with the termination provisions set forth herein and/or to pursue all other remedies
available under the dispute resolution process set forth in Section 18 above.

SECTION 20. Equal Opportunity & Non-Discrimination

MCFD and all its employees while performing under this Subcontract shall comply with
the equal opportunity and non-discrimination provisions of all applicable federal, state and local
laws, statutes and ordinances. MCFD and its employees shall not discriminate on the basis of
race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, sex, sexual preference, marital status, age, physical
or mental disability in any matters related to access to or provision of services, or related to
employment.

SECTION 21. Termination

This Subcontract may be terminated by one hundred twenty (120) days written notice
being given by either party to the other party. However, if either party considers termination it
must, at least thirty (30) days prior to recommending or proposing any action to effect
termination, give written notice to the other party, including its reasons(s) for contemplating
termination. Within fifteen (15) days after giving such written notice, the parties shall meet to
discuss the contemplated termination, which meeting should include both parties’ involved
representatives, designated liaison persons and legal counsel. An agreed-upon mediator may also
attend if both parties agree to have such a mediator present and agree to equally share all costs of
the mediator. If no written or oral agreement is reached avoiding any contemplated termination,
both parties within fifteen (15) days of meeting shall in a joint written statement recommend that
termination occur and the reasons therefor. Either party then may, at the time or after this joint
statement is made, elect to give the other party the aforementioned 120-day written notice of its
intent to terminate this Subcontract.

SECTION 22. Amendments

This Subcontract shall not be further amended or modified at any time and in any respect
whatsoever except in writing and by both parties hereto. RVPA and MCFD each agrees that it
will make no claim at any time that this Subcontract has been orally amended or modified, and
each agrees that no oral waiver, amendment or modification shall be effective for any purpose.

SECTION 23. Breach & Enforcement

This Subcontract may be pleaded as a full and complete defense to, and may be used as
the basis for a petition/motion against, any action, suit or other proceeding which may be
instituted, prosecuted or maintained in breach of this Subcontract, including but not limited to a
petition/motion to compel mediation and/or arbitration.

SECTION 24. Severability
Should any provision of this Subcontract be determined by any court to be illegal or

invalid, the validity of the remaining parts, terms or provisions shall not be affected thereby, and
said illegal or invalid part, term or provision shall be deemed not to be part of this Subcontract.

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -6-



SECTION 25. Governing Law

This Subcontract is made and entered into within the State of California, and shall in all
respects be interpreted, enforced and governed under the laws of the State of California, with
venue agreed to be within the County of Marin. The language of all parts of this Subcontract
shall in all cases be construed as a whole, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or
against either RVPA or MCFD.

SECTION 26. Parties’ Representations

RVPA and MCFD each represent and acknowledge that, in executing this Subcontract,
they do not rely, and have not relied, upon any representation or statement made by any of their
agents, representatives or attorneys with regard to the subject matter, basis or fact of this
Subcontract or otherwise.

SECTION 27. Binding Upon Successors

This Subcontract shall be binding upon the parties and their administrators,
representatives, executors, successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of the parties,
and each of them, and their administrators, representatives, executors, successors and assigns.

SECTION 28. Headings

The section headings and titles contained in this Subcontract are for convenience and
reference only and are not intended to define, limit, or describe the scope of any provision of this
Subcontract.

SECTION 29. Consent

Whenever any consent or approval is required by this Subcontract, such consent or
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed, except as otherwise
specifically set forth herein.

SECTION 30. Designated Representatives

The Executive Officer of RVPA is its designated representative and will administer this
Subcontract on its behalf. MCFD’s Fire Chief is its designated representative. Changes in
designated representatives shall occur by advance written notice to the other party.

SECTION 31. Notices

All notices and demands of any kind which either party may require or desire to serve on
the other in connection with this Subcontract must be served in writing either by personal service
or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, and shall be deposited in the United
States Mail, with postage thereon fully prepaid, and addressed to the parties to be served as
follows:

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract
July 1, 2019



If to RVPA:

Executive Officer, Ross Valley Paramedic Authority
P.O. Box 518
Woodacre, CA 94973

If to MCFD:

Fire Chief, Marin County Fire Department
P.O. Box 518
Woodacre, CA 94973

Each party shall provide the other with telephonic and written notice of any change of
address as soon as practicable. Notices given by personal delivery or acknowledged shall be
effective immediately.

SECTION 32. Appendices

The following appendices to this Subcontract are attached hereto and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein:

Appendix A Definition of Terms

Appendix B Paramedic Service Area

Appendix C Minimum Requirements

Appendix D Administrative Services

Appendix E Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) Services
Appendix F Compensation

Appendix G Standard Insurance Requirements

Appendix H General Liability Endorsement Form

SECTION 33. Execution In Counterparts

This Subcontract may be executed on behalf of the parties in one or more counterparts,
all of which collectively shall constitute one document and subcontract.

SECTION 34. Effective Date

The effective date of this Subcontract is the date set forth in the first paragraph hereof,
once this Subcontract is fully executed by each of the parties’ representatives set forth below.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have entered into and executed this
Subcontract as follows:

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract 8-
July 1, 2019



COUNTY OF MARIN

Attest:
By:
President, Board of Supervisors
Board Clerk
ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC
AUTHORITY
Attest:
By:
Chair, Board of Directors
RVPA Clerk
RVPA/MCFD Subcontract 0-

July 1, 2019



APPENDIX A
DEFINITION OF TERMS

Advanced Life Support (ALS)

Special services designed to provide definitive pre hospital emergency medical care including
but not limited to, cardiopulmonary resuscitation, cardiac monitoring, cardiac defibrillation,
advanced airway management, intravenous therapy, administration of specified drugs and other
medicinal preparations, and other specified techniques and procedures administered by
authorized personnel under the direct supervision of a base hospital as part of a local EMS
system at the scene of an emergency, during transport to an acute care hospital, during
interfacility transfer, and while in the emergency department of an acute care hospital until
responsibility is assumed by the emergency or other medical staff of that hospital.

Hospital

One of a limited number of hospitals which, upon designation by the local EMS agency and with
a written contractual agreement with the local EMS agency, is responsible for providing medical
direction and supervision of EMT-P personnel in accordance with Title 22, Section 100169.

Hospital ED Physician

A physician and surgeon who is currently licensed in California, who is assigned to the
emergency department of a participating hospital, and who has been trained to issue advice and
instructions to pre-hospital emergency medical care personnel consistent with state-wide
guidelines established by the Emergency Medical Services Authority.

Basic Life Support (BLS)

The level of emergency medical care which includes advanced first aid and cardiopulmonary
resuscitation (CPR) procedures which, as a minimum, include recognizing respiratory and
cardiac arrest and starting the proper application of cardiopulmonary resuscitation to maintain
life without invasive techniques until the victim may be transported or until advanced life
support is available.

Code 2

An urgent, but not emergency, medical response that may result in the transport of a patient.
Method of travel - Respond as soon as possible upon receipt of the call, driving in a manner that
does not violate any posted speed or traffic regulations, using no red lights or siren.

Code 3

An emergent medical response that may result in the transport of a patient.
Method of travel - Respond as soon as possible upon receipt of the call, using due caution, red
lights and siren.

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -10-



County Communications

The Communications Division of the Sheriffs Department, County of Marin, including all
personnel and equipment attached thereto, designated by County to exercise radio control and to
coordinate emergency medical dispatching, as well as other specific public safety responses.

Dry Run

An ambulance trip, authorized by County Communications, that does not result in patient
contact.

Emergency Medical Technician | (EMT-I)

An individual trained in all facets of basic life support according to the standards proscribed by
the state pursuant to the Health and Safety Code, and who has a valid certificate issued pursuant
to that law.

Emergency Medical Technician Paramedic (EMT-P)

An individual whose scope of practice to provide advanced life support is according to standards
prescribed by state law in the Health and Safety Code, and who has a valid certificate pursuant to
that law.

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Agency

The agency, department, or office having primary responsibility for administration of emergency
medical services within Marin County.

Emergency Medical Services Authority

The state agency within the Health and Welfare Agency with the responsibility, under the Health
and Safety Code, for the development of planning and implementation guidelines for emergency
medical services systems.

Mobile Intensive Care Nurse (MICN)

A registered nurse, employed by a participating hospital and working in a participating hospital
Emergency Department who has been authorized by the EMS Medical Director to provide
instruction to paramedics under the supervision of a hospital ED physician.

Response Times

"To call" time (dispatch interval) --time from receipt of call by dispatch agency to receipt of call
by provider agency or provider agency dispatch.

"To dispatch™ time (in-service interval) --time from receipt of call by provider agency until unit
IS "in service". "In service" means response unit wheels are rolling.

"To-scene™" time--time from "in service" to arrival at designated destination--when vehicle
wheels stop rolling.

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -11-



"At scene" time--time interval between arrival on scene and departure from scene.

"Actual response time"-- time interval from receipt of call by provider agency or provider agency
dispatch until "on scene”. Time used to evaluate contract compliance.

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -12-



APPENDIX B
PARAMEDIC SERVICE AREA C

Central Marin starting at the summit of Loma Alta at Post H-5 of Rancho Canada de Herrera;
thence northeasterly to the ridge line between Terra Linda and Sleepy Hollow, continuing
southeasterly along the ridge line to the existing city limits of San Rafael; thence southeasterly
along said city limits to the most northerly point of Parcel 6 of County Service Area 19; thence
leaving said city limits southerly along the northwesterly boundary of said CSA 19 to the point
of intersection with the city limits of San Rafael; thence leaving said CSA 19 boundary and
continuing southerly and easterly along the San Rafael limits and the southerly boundary of
Parcel | of CSA 19 to a point of intersection of said city limits, the easterly right of way of Sir
Francis Drake Blvd. East and State Highway 17; thence leaving said San Rafael limits and
continuing easterly along the southerly right of way of Highway 17 to the point of intersection
with the shoreline of San Francisco Bay at Point San Quentin; thence southerly along said
shoreline to a point on the northerly boundary of the Tiburon Fire District; thence westerly along
said Fire District boundary and the southerly boundary of Corte Madera to the point of
intersection with the Mill Valley City limits; thence westerly along said limits to the most
northern point of the City of Mill Valley;. thence northwesterly in a direct line to the East Peak
of Mr. Tamalpais; thence southwesterly in a direct line to the northern right of way at the easterly
terminus of Ridgecrest Blvd.; thence following said right of way to the intersection of Pan Toll
Road; thence northwest along Bolinas Ridge Blvd. to the most westerly corner of the 5515.38
acre MMWD parcel as said parcel is described in Book 215 of Official Records at Page 337,
Marin County Records; thence northerly and northwesterly along the westerly boundary of said
MMWD parcel to the most northerly corner thereof, said comer also being on the westerly
boundary of Rancho Canada de Herrera; thence northerly and westerly along said Rancho line to
the point of beginning.

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -13-



A

APPENDIX C
MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS

Coverage Requirements

Must provide continuous 24-hour/day, year-round coverage for all urgent (Code 2)
and emergent (Code 3) medical dispatches in assigned service area.

Must provide the minimum staffing for one ALS Ambulance to service the RVPA
exclusive operating area. Ambulance staffing to consist of a minimum of one
Engineer Paramedic and one firefighter Paramedic meeting County of Marin EMS
standards. At the discretion of the contractor on rare occasion, contractor may staff
ambulance with one paramedic and one EMT.

Must assure the availability of ALS care and transport to all patients regardless of
their ability to pay.

The desired maximum response time for ALS ambulance is ten (10) minutes to 90%
of emergent calls originating in assigned service area.

Response time components will be recorded by County Communications and
maintained by County. Contractor will be considered to be "in compliance” with
response time requirements when the 'to dispatch” time is two (2) minutes or less
ninety five percent of the time, reported monthly.

Must respond immediately with available ALS ambulance in a mutual aid capacity
outside assigned area of responsibility, but within Marin County, if directed to do so
by County Communications.

Must provide, or cause to be provided by agreement or contract, availability of ALS
unit to assure citizen access to care.

Review of patient care and services will occur as detailed in contractor’s Continuous
Quality Improvement plan, which has been reviewed and approved by, and is on file
with, the EMS Office.

Communication and Dispatch Requirements

A.  Contractor must agree to install, utilize and maintain the appropriate radio equipment
as follows:
1. All ALS units and BLS ambulances used for emergency medical response
must be equipped with two-way radios on frequencies designated by County
Communications for the purpose of dispatching by, and status-keeping with,
County Communications.
2. Communications equipment, compatible with the existing communications
system, must be installed prior to assignment of a vehicle for zone coverage.
RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019

-14-



3. Two-way radios must be operated in conformance with all applicable rules
and regulations of the Federal Communications Commission.

4. All mobile data services and hardware for patient care reports shall be
provided at Contractor’s expense.

5. All mobile and portable radio equipment used must be approved by the
County DPW Communications Shop if they are contracted for repair and
maintenance.

6. All emergency calls requiring a Code 3 response which Contractor receives
from sources other than County Communications will be reported
immediately to County Communications who shall assume responsibility for
dispatching the most appropriate response as defined in policy.

B.  Dispatching will occur as follows:

1. Contractor-owned units/ambulances will be dispatched by County
Communications Center utilizing approved Marin County
policies/procedures/and protocols.

2. All subcontracted ALS and BLS units/ambulances involved in emergency
medical care under this agreement shall be directly dispatched by County
Communications.

3. Upon receipt of verbal authorization, as promptly as possible, the appropriate
vehicle and crew must be en route to the designated location, proceeding in a
manner specified by EMD protocols. If response will be delayed, Contractor
shall inform County Communications of delay and the need for alternative
response should be evaluated.

4, Contractor shall inform County Communications of any changes in
availability and status of ALS units and BLS ambulances, in or out of
service. Those vehicles not staffed according to contract requirements shall
be out of service and reported as such to County Communications and the
Marin County EMS Agency within 15 minutes.

5. ALS units and BLS ambulances will use the unit identification number
designated by County Communications.

II. Equipment and Supply Requirements
A.  Vehicles

1. Ambulance vehicles shall meet standards specified in Title 13, Chapter 2, of
the California Administrative Code.

2. Vehicles will be maintained cleanly and in good mechanical and body
condition at all times.

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -15-



3.

Vehicle maintenance shall be performed as per manufacturer
recommendation, with records of same available for inspection as requested
by County.

Safety Equipment: Safety Equipment to be carried on all ambulances and maintained
in good working order shall include those items listed as requirements by the
California Administrative Code and as recommended by Title 22 of the Health and
Safety Code.

In addition to the above, units will carry all equipment listed in the Marin County
EMS Policy and Procedure Manual, “Ambulance Supply/Equipment Requirements”,
policy # 5002., as appropriate.

V. Relationship with the County Department of Health and Human Services:

A.  Committees
1. Contractor will designate a member of the Pre-hospital Medical Care
Committee, a standing committee of the Emergency Medical Care
Committee and advisory to the EMS Medical Director and EMS Program
Administrator.
a. Designation is to assure Contractor input during formulation or change
in EMS system policies and procedures.
b. Designation is to assure that Contractor is informed as to system
direction and change as discussed in on-going meetings.
B.  Data Collection
1. Contractor agrees to utilize standardized ambulance records as designated by
County.
2. Contractor agrees to supply to County other statistical information as
mutually agreed upon.
3. County agrees to supply to Contractor statistical information as mutually
agreed upon and related to Contractor's service area.
C.  System Coordination
1. Contractor will work cooperatively with County to plan for, implement and
maintain a coordinated and integrated emergency medical services system.
2. Contractor will maintain complete financial records pertinent to and during
the performance of this Subcontract.
3. All records maintained pursuant to this Subcontract shall be available for
inspection, audit, or examination by the EMS Medical Director or designee
RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019

-16-



and shall be preserved by the Contractor for at least three (3) years from the
termination of this Subcontract.

4. EMS Medical Director or designee may inspect vehicles and records during
normal business hours, without prior notice, to verify Contractor compliance
with the terms and conditions of this Subcontract.

5. Contractor shall designate a single individual as liaison between the EMS
Office, the hospitals, and the Provider Agency.

D. Public Education

1. Contractor shall be active in providing public education to the community it
serves (e.g. CPR, 911 campaign, general EMS awareness, etc.).

2. Public education programs shall be coordinated and consistent with
objectives established by the parties to this agreement.

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -17-



APPENDIX D
ADMINSTRATIVE SERVICES

MCFD agrees to provide administrative oversight of all aspects of this Subcontract, and
agrees to provide an Administrator who is responsible for ensuring that all requirements of this
agreement are met, including but not limited to taking the following actions:

1.  Develop and maintain the contractual agreement between MCFD and RVPA,;

2.  Prepare the annual budget and proposal for services;

3. Represent MCFD at all Board and administrative meetings;

4.  Arrange Advanced Life Support instruction for paramedics and EMTSs, including
ACLS certification and renewal,

5. Arrange in-service training for all new policies and procedures set forth by the
Marin County EMSA at both the ALS and BLS levels;

6. Represent the Committee at the Field Advisory Committee (FAC) and other related
task forces and committees and compile summaries of said meetings and
disseminate to Ross Valley Fire agencies;

7.  Establish and maintain a medical equipment research and standardization
committee;

8.  Manage the purchase of all medical equipment and supplies used by MCFD;

9.  Oversee the service contracts for medical equipment used by MCFD; and

10. Develop targeted injury prevention programs as needed for constituents in the Ross
Valley as directed by RVPA’s Board.

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract 18-

July 1, 2019



APPENDIX E
CONTINUOUS QUALITY IMPROVEMENT (CQI) SERVICES

MCFD agrees to contract with outside persons for the positions of Medical Director, CQI
(Continuous Quality Improvement) Coordinator and EMS Nurse Educator. The purpose of the
CQI Program is to ensure continuous quality improvement for MCFD, SMEMPS and RVPA.
The purpose of the Medical Director position is to provide medical control while assuring
medical accountability throughout planning, implementation and evaluation of the EMS
(Emergency Medical Service) delivery system for MCFD, SMEMPS and RVPA. MCFD shall
have full responsibility for preparation and oversight of the contracts with the CQI Coordinator,
Medical Director and EMS Nurse Educator.

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -19-



APPENDIX F
COMPENSATION

RVPA, in consideration of the services provided by MCFD hereunder, agrees to
compensate MCFD for the 2019/2020 fiscal year as follows:

Total Salaries S 1,579,368.18
Supplies S 19,271.67
CQI/EMS Education S 48,572.00
Med Director Insurance S 680.00
MERA S 3,123.79

S 1,651,015.64

RVPA shall remit to MCFD the foregoing amounts in two separate payments, the first on
January 1% and the second on June 1% of each fiscal year.

RVPA, and not MCFD, shall provide RVPA Board allowances and associated
administrative costs, as well as extraordinary public education costs deemed appropriate by
RVPA'’s Board. RVPA also shall provide for parcel and tax roll research, housing of vehicles
owned by it and third-party contractor service costs for Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI),
Emergency Medical Services Educator, Medical Director Services and EMS Nurse Educator.

RVPA will make available to MCFD equipment necessary for the operation of an
advanced life support service, including but not limited to cardiac monitors, mobile and portable
radios; provided, however, that title to said property will remain with RVPA. RVPA shall be
responsible for all routine maintenance (e.g., oil changes, replacement of tires), minor repairs and
major repairs and maintenance of the equipment. MCFD will provide RVPA with a backup
vehicle and equipment as needed, and said unit will continue to be dispatched through Marin
County Communications, all in accordance with established County policies. MCFD agrees to
return all equipment to RVPA at the termination of this Subcontract and shall not be liable for
any repairs unless the need for such repairs was caused by MCFD’s negligence. In the event that
RVPA'’s Board or its voters request an upgrade of the level of services, MCFD agrees to increase
such level provided it is reimbursed for the costs, all subject to mutual agreement by the parties
hereto.

It is intended by the parties hereto that this Appendix F relating to compensation may be
amended annually or as otherwise needed by means of written addendum without the necessity
of amending this entire Subcontract.

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -20-



APPENDIX G
STANDARD INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Unless RVPA and MCFD agree otherwise, prior to rendering services provided by the terms and
conditions of this Subcontract, MCFD shall acquire and maintain during the term of this
Subcontract insurance coverage, through and with an insurer acceptable to RVPA, naming
RVPA and its officials, employees, and volunteers as additional insured, (hereinafter referred to
as "the insurance™). The limits of insurance herein shall not limit the liability of MCFD

hereunder.

1. Except for professional liability coverage said policies shall be in effect until final
acceptance of MCFD’s work by RVPA and shall provide that they may not be canceled
without first providing RVPA with thirty (30) days written notice of such intended
cancellation. If MCFD fails to maintain the insurance provided herein, RVPA may secure
such insurance and deduct the cost thereof from any funds owing to MCFD.

2. Minimum Scope of Insurance. MCFD shall procure insurance covering general liability,
automobile liability, and workers’ compensation. Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

@ Insurance Services Office (ISO) Commercial General Liability Occurrence form
number CG 0001 or equivalent ISO form. A non-1SO form must be reviewed by
MCEFD prior to acceptance of the Subcontract.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in (e)(ii)(bb) Insurance Services Office form
number CA 0001 (Ed. 1/87) covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 "any auto"
and Endorsement CA 0029.

(c) Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of
California and Employers Liability insurance.

(d) Professional Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance, coverage form subject to
County Approval.

3. Other Insurance Provisions. The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the

following provisions:

(@)

General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages. RVPA and its officials,
employees and volunteers are to be covered as insureds as respects: liability
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of MCFD; products and
completed operations of MCFD; premises owned, leased or used by MCFD; or
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by MCFD. The coverage shall
contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to RVPA, its
officials, employees or volunteers.

() MCFD’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects
RVPA, its officials, employees and volunteers and any other insureds
under this contract. Any insurance of self-insurance maintained by RVPA,

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract 21-

July 1, 2019



its officials, employees and volunteers or other insureds shall be excess of
the MCFD’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

(i) Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not
affect coverage provided to RVPA, its officials, employees and volunteers
or other insureds under this contract.

(iti)  Coverage shall state that MCFD's insurance shall apply separately to each
‘insured’ against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

(b) Workers” Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage.
(c) Professional Errors and Omissions insurance.

1. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state
that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party,
reduced in coverage or in limits except aft.er thirty (30) days prior written
notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to RVPA.

4. Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current AM.

Best's rating of no less than A-VII if admitted. A non-admitted insurer shall have a Best’s
rating of no less than A-X.

5. Minimum Limits of Insurance. MCFD shall maintain limits no less than:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Commercial General Liability: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single
limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage with a
general aggregate limit of $2,000,000.

Automobile Liability: Subject to the option of RVPA either: (aa) $1,000,000
combined single limit per accident for bodily injury or property damage or; (bb)
Personal Automobile liability coverage of $500,000 bodily injury and property
damage.

Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability: Workers' compensation limits
as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and Employers Liability
limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident.

Professional Errors and Omissions Liability: Policy limits of not less than One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per incident and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)
annual aggregate, with deductible or self-insured portion not to exceed Two
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500). Coverage may be made on a
claims-made basis with a "Retro Date" either prior to the date of the Contract or
the Beginning of the Contract work. If claims-made, coverage must extend to a
minimum of twelve (12) months beyond completion of project. If coverage is
canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims made policy form
with a "Retro Date" prior to the contract effective date, MCFD must purchase

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019

-22-



"extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of twelve (12) months after
completion of contract work.

6. In addition to the above policies, if MCFD is to hire a subcontractor under this
Subcontract, MCFD shall require subcontractor to provide insurance identical to the
coverage required under this Subcontract, and- shall require subcontractor to name RVPA
as additional insured under its Subcontract. Certificate(s) of Insurance(s) and original
endorsement(s) providing such coverage shall be provided to RVPA under Paragraph 6
(h) of this Subcontract.

7. Deductibles and Self-Insured retentions. Except as otherwise provided in this
Subcontract, any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved
by RVPA. At the option of RVPA: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles
or self-insured retentions as respects RVPA, its officials and employees; or MCFD shall
procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim
administration and defense expenses.

8. Verification of Coverage. MCFD shall furnish RVPA with Certificate(s) of Insurance and
with original endorsement(s) affecting coverage required by this clause. The certificate(s)
and endorsement(s) for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by
that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The certificate(s) and endorsement(s) are to be
on forms provided by RVPA or on forms received and approved by it before work
commences. RVPA reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required
insurance policies, at any time.

9. MCEFD shall not render services under the terms and conditions of this Subcontract unless
each type of insurance coverage and endorsement is in effect and it has delivered the
certificate(s) of insurance and endorsement(s) to RVPA as previously described. If
MCFD shall fail to procure and maintain said insurance, RVPA may, but shall not be
required to, procure and maintain the same, and the premiums of such insurance shall be
paid by MCFD to RVPA upon demand. The policies of insurance provided herein which
are to be provided by MCFD shall be for a period of not less than one year, it being
understood and agreed that thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any policy of
insurance, MCFD will deliver to RVPA a renewal or new policy to take the place of the
policy expiring.

RVPA shall have the right to request such further coverages and/or endorsements on the
insurance as it deems necessary, at MCFD’s expense. The amounts, insurance policy forms,
endorsement(s) and insurer(s) issuing the insurance shall be satisfactory to RVPA in its sole and
absolute discretion.

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -23-



APPENDIX H
GENERAL LIABILITY ENDORSEMENT FORM

(Current Form To Be Obtained/Approved By Parties)

RVPA/MCFD Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -24-



Subcontract For Advanced Life Support Services
Provided By Ross Valley Fire Department To
Ross Valley Paramedic Authority

July 1, 2019




SUBCONTRACT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

T = USRS 1
SUDCONTIACT ...ttt b e bbbt e et e bbbt be s 2
SECTION 1.  Term Of This SUDCONIIACE.........c.civeeiieieiieeeie e 2
SECTION 2. Earlier Subcontracts Superseded............ccceeveriereeiieiesiene e 2
SECTION 3. RVFD As Independent CONtraCtor...........c.coovieririeieiieienese e 2
SECTION 4. Conformance With 1999 CONraCt ...........cccovvririniniiniieienese e 2
SECTION 5. Terms DefiNed.........ccoiiieiiiiiieie e 2
SECTION 6.  Services TO Be RENUEIEd.........cccouvieirrieriiieiie e 2
SECTION 7. Compensation For Services Rendered ...........cccoovviiiiiinninin s 3
SECTION 8.  Performance REVIEW ..........cccooiiiiieieiienie et 3
SECTION 9. Health & Safety CONCEIMNS.........couiiiiieiererieie e 3
SECTION 10. EMS POlICIES & PrOCEAUIES ........ceierieieieiie ittt 3
SECTION 11. Vehicle & ReCords INSPECLIONS........cceiveieiriiriiriiniisiieieiee e 3
SECTION 12. Changes To Applicable Federal Or State Statutes............ccccecevvevieenee. 3
SECTION 13. Changes To 1999 Agreement Affecting This Subcontract.................... 4
SECTION 14. Hold Harmless & IndemnifiCation............ccccovvurvnininiinnnnene e 4
SECTION 15, INSUFBNCE ....veiiiiieiie ittt sttt ettt nn e nee e 4
SECTION 16. Conflict Of INTEreSt ......cceiiiiiiiiiieieie et 4
SECTION 17. ASSIGNADTIILY ..ot 4
SECTION 18. Dispute ReSOIUtION PrOCESS........c.cccveivieieiieiiecie e sie et 5
SECTION 19, DefaUlt......cccvoiiieieie et 5
SECTION 20. Equal Opportunity & Non-Discrimination .............ccccevveveevieseesieennnn, 5
SECTION 21, TerMINAtION ....cccueuiiiesiieieeiesieeieseesiaeee e seeseesseesseeseesseenseeneesseeseenneenes 6
SECTION 22. AMENAMENTS ...cveiiieieiieite ittt st sreeneas 6
SECTION 23. Breach & ENfOrCement.......cccocveiviieiiee e 6
SECTION 24. SeVerability ........cccooviiiiii et 6
SECTION 25. GOVEIMING LAW ...cooiuiiiiiiiiiiiesiesieeee et 6
SECTION 26. Parties’ Representations.........cecvviveiiiiiiiieiisiciieiisesseesre e 7
SECTION 27. Binding UPON SUCCESSOIS .....ccuciuriuieieieieeniesiesiesiesieseeiesee e sie e sie e 7
SECTION 28. HEAAINGS.....ccuveitieiiiiieite ettt te e te e sre e steeste e sreesneenee e 7
SECTION 29. CONSENL.......eeiiieieiieiiie ettt sttt st e et nnee e 7
SECTION 30. Designated RepreSENtatiVes ..........ccccveveieeieiie e 7
SECTION 3L, INOUCES ...eeuveiiieiieeiieiiesieeiesee e ete e ste e e te e aeaneesseesneaneesseeteaneesneensennee e 7
SECTION 32, APPENUICES.....citieiiitieitieie ettt te s sre e steeste s e sreesreenee e 8
SECTION 33. Execution IN COUNTEIPAITS ........ccueieieeiiereirieriesiesii st 8
SECTION 34. EffECtIVE DAL ....c.eoiuiiiiiee e 8
APPENDIX A DEFINITION OF TERMS......ciiiei e 10
APPENDIX B PARAMEDIC SERVICE AREA C .....cooiitiiiieeeene e 13
APPENDIX C MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS ..ot 14
APPENDIX D COMPENSATION. ..ottt 18
APPENDIX E STANDARD INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.........ccccoiiiiiiiirnns 20
APPENDIX F GENERAL LIABILITY ENDORSEMENT FORM.......ccocvvviiiinnns 23

RVPA/RVFD Subcontract
July 1, 2019



Subcontract

This Subcontract is entered into and is effective July 1, 2019 (the “Effective Date”) by
and between the ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY (hereinafter
“RVPA”) and the ROSS VALLEY FIRE AUTHORITY (also known as the ROSS VALLEY
FIRE DEPARTMENT, and hereinafter “RVFD”) for basic and advanced life support services
provided by RVFD to RVPA as set forth herein.

Recitals

A. RVPA was formed in 1982 pursuant to a joint powers agreement by and among
the Town of Corte Madera, the City of Larkspur, the Town of Ross, the Town of San Anselmo,
the Town of Fairfax, the Kentfield Fire Protection District, the Sleepy Hollow Fire Protection
District and the County of Marin for the purpose of having a single consolidated agency provide
paramedic/life support services throughout the Ross Valley and across jurisdictional boundaries.

B. RVPA and the County of Marin on August 17, 1999 entered into a contract with
each other entitled “Agreement Advanced and Basic Life Support Service.” Under this 1999
Agreement, County contracted with RVPA for RVPA to provide basic and advanced life support
services within a designated service area consistent with minimum requirements promulgated by
County. The foregoing 1999 Agreement has been in full force and effect continuously from 1999
to the present, and RVPA for the past nineteen years has fully performed by satisfactorily
providing the specified life support services. County and RVPA will continue operating under
this 1999 Agreement for the foreseeable future on a year-to-year basis by mutual consent of the
parties.

C. RVPA, under its 1999 Agreement with the County, is an independent contractor
which may subcontract for the life support/paramedic services it provides County so long as (i)
any subcontract contains minimum provisions specified by the 1999 Agreement; (ii) the
subcontracting party is qualified to render such services; (iii) the subcontracting procedures
follow established County guidelines; and (iv) the subcontract is both filed with and approved by
the County. RVFD has been provided with a complete copy of the 1999 contract which is
incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

D. Pursuant to its aforementioned 1999 Agreement with the County, RVPA in prior,
multiple years has subcontracted with RVFD for the provision of life support/paramedic services
rendered within a designated service area.

E. It is the intention of the parties hereto that RVFD will continue to subcontract
with RVPA for the provision of the same life support/paramedic services.

NOW THEREFORE, the purpose and intent of this Subcontract is to set forth the current
terms, conditions, requirements and procedures that shall govern and control the provision of
basic and advanced life support services by RVFD to RVPA as authorized by the Joint Exercise
of Powers Act (Government Code Sections 6500, et seq.) which expressly permits the parties to
contract for such services with each other.

RVPA/RVFD Subcontract
July 1, 2019



Subcontract

RVPA and RVFD, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms and
conditions set forth below, hereby agree as follows:

SECTION 1. Term Of This Subcontract

This Subcontract shall commence on the above-stated Effective Date and shall continue
in full force and effect for an indefinite term until terminated as set forth below. In no event shall
this Subcontract extend beyond the life of the aforementioned 1999 Agreement between County
and RVPA.

SECTION 2. Earlier Subcontracts Superseded

This Subcontract supersedes all other earlier subcontracts between RVPA and RVFD
for the provision of life support services, which earlier subcontracts are hereby revoked,
terminated and are of no force or effect.

SECTION 3. RVFD As Independent Contractor

RVFD at all times and for all purposes under this Subcontract is an independent
contractor and shall not be deemed an agent, servant or employee of either RVPA or County, nor
is this Subcontract to be construed as a partnership, joint venture or association by RVFD with
either RVPA or County.

SECTION 4. Conformance With 1999 Contract

RVPA is authorized to subcontract for the life support services specified under its 1999
Agreement with County provided that (i) any and all such subcontracts at a minimum contain the
provisions required by the County for such subcontracts; (ii) the subcontracting party is fully-
qualified to render such services; (iii) the subcontractor follows established County guidelines;
and (iv) the subcontract is approved in advance by County which shall not unreasonably
withhold such approval. To the extent possible, all such subcontracts shall be in a standardized,
consistent form with all common provisions equally applicable to all subcontractors. Fully-
executed copies of all subcontracts, including this Subcontract, shall be provided by RVPA to,
and be on file with, County.

SECTION 5. Terms Defined

Terms used throughout this Subcontract are defined in Appendix “A” attached hereto and
by this reference incorporated herein.

SECTION 6. Services To Be Rendered

Upon receipt of verbal authorization issued by County Communications, RVFD shall, for
the consideration set forth in this Subcontract, provide Basic and Advanced Life Support
Services to the assigned service area described in Appendix “B” attached hereto and by this
reference incorporated herein Such services shall be provided in accordance with the Minimum
Requirements set forth in Appendix “C” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated

RVPA/RVED Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -2-



herein, as well as all policies and procedures contained in the Marin County Emergency Medical
Services Policy and Procedure Manual (as currently and periodically updated).

SECTION 7. Compensation For Services Rendered

The terms and conditions for compensation to RVFD for its life support services
provided under this Subcontract are set forth in Appendix “D” attached hereto and incorporated
herein by this reference.

SECTION 8. Performance Review

RVPA reserves the right at any time to review RVFD’s performance under this
Subcontract, and agrees to provide to RVFD the results of its review. RVFD agrees to cooperate
with any and all requests for information and documents related to any such review and, if
necessary, to cooperate and provide material to County’s EMS Agency.

SECTION 9. Health & Safety Concerns

If any provisions of this Subcontract are violated by RVFD in a manner that presents a
possible or potential danger to the public health and safety, RVPA’s Executive Officer shall
notify RVFD’s Fire Chief of the alleged violation by telephone and in writing, with a copy of
such notification sent to County’s EMS Agency. If RVFD fails to correct the violation within
fourteen (14) days after receipt of written notice, RVPA may suspend this Subcontract until such
violation has been corrected. The decision of RVPA as to the existence of a contract violation
and its resolution shall be final, but RVFD shall be permitted to present its response to the
RVPA’s Board of Directors either in writing or orally or both before any such final decision is
rendered.

SECTION 10. EMS Policies & Procedures

County’s Emergency Medical Services Policy and Procedures Manual shall guide the
performance of all of RVFD personnel when operating under this Subcontract. Copies shall be
maintained by RVFD, including revisions as they take place. RVFD shall ensure that drivers and
attendants are familiar with the contents of this Manual. RVFD shall not enact policies or
procedures that conflict with County's policies or procedures. Both RVPA and RVFD shall have
the opportunity to review and provide input during the formulation of all such County policies
applicable to this Subcontract.

SECTION 11. Vehicle & Records Inspections

RVFD upon reasonable notice given by RVPA shall make available all vehicles and
records involved in the performance of this Subcontract for purposes of inspection by RVPA
and/or County.

SECTION 12. Changes To Applicable Federal Or State Statutes

RVPA and County reserve the right to modify their standards applicable herein to
conform with any changes in applicable Federal or State statutes. Notice of modifications shall
be mailed to RVFD’s Fire Chief at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of said statutes

RVPA/RVFD Subcontract 3
July 1, 2019



(unless such statutes are urgency measures). RVFD will have thirty (30) days from time of
notification to institute changes unless a different time frame is agreed upon in writing by the
parties.

SECTION 13. Changes To 1999 Agreement Affecting This Subcontract

The parties hereby acknowledge and agree that termination or modification of RVPA’s
1999 Agreement with County will affect this Subcontract. For example, termination of the 1999
Agreement would result in the immediate termination of this Subcontract and the cessation of all
life support services being provided hereunder. The parties therefore agree to work together in
advance of any changes to said 1999 Agreement in order to eliminate and/or minimize any
disruption to services and to provide for an orderly transition necessitated by any such changes.

SECTION 14. Hold Harmless & Indemnification

RVPA and RVFD each agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other, and the
other’s officers, agents and employees, against any and all liabilities, injuries or damages caused
by the intentional or negligent acts, errors or omissions of their own respective employees,
agents or representatives in connection with their performance and duties under the terms and
provisions of this Subcontract. The duty to indemnify and hold harmless shall include the duty to
defend as set forth in California Civil Code Section 2778. In the event of concurrent negligence
or liability of the parties, liability shall be apportioned between RVPA and RVFD under the
doctrine of comparative fault as established under California law.

SECTION 15. Insurance

RVFD shall carry at its own expense during the full term of this Subcontract the
insurance coverages specified in Appendix “E” attached hereto and by this reference
incorporated herein. RVFD shall provide a current endorsement of such coverages (on the
general liability endorsement form attached hereto as Appendix “F”) to RVPA within ten (10)
days of this Subcontract being fully executed by each of the parties’ representatives set forth
below.

SECTION 16. Conflict Of Interest

Both RVPA and RVFD warrant and covenant that they presently have no interest in, nor
shall any interest be hereinafter acquired, in any matter which will render the services required
under the provisions of this Subcontract a violation of any applicable state, local or federal law.
RVPA and RVFD further warrant that no officer or employee of theirs has influenced or
participated in a decision to award this Subcontract which has or may confer a benefit, pecuniary
or otherwise, in a manner which would violate State law. In the event that any conflict of interest
or violation of this section should nevertheless hereafter arise, that party shall promptly notify
the other of the existence of the conflict such that all appropriate action immediately may be
undertaken.

SECTION 17. Assignability

RVFD shall not assign all or any portion of this Subcontract.

RVPA/RVED Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -4-



SECTION 18. Dispute Resolution Process

Should any disagreement or dispute between RVPA and RVFD arise concerning
interpretation, implementation and/or enforcement of any of the terms or subject matter of this
Subcontract, the parties shall submit such dispute to mandatory mediation before an agreed upon
mediator, each party to pay an equal share of the mediation fees and each party to pay its own
attorneys’ fees and legal costs. Should RVPA and RVFD be unable to agree upon a mediator,
they shall agree upon a mediation service and shall have that service select a mediator for them.
Should mediation be unsuccessful, then RVPA and RVFD each agree that they shall submit their
dispute to binding arbitration before a mutually-agreeable arbitrator. If they cannot agree upon an
arbitrator, they shall select an arbitration service which shall select an arbitrator for them. RVPA
and RVFD each shall pay an equal portion of the arbitration fees and each party shall pay its own
attorneys’ fees and legal costs, it hereby being agreed that the arbitrator shall have no authority
to award attorneys’ fees or costs to any prevailing party. RVPA and RVFD hereby expressly
waive any and all rights to have disputes under this Subcontract decided by court action, court
trial, jury trial or any other legal action of any kind or type, other than the mandatory mediation
and binding arbitration process specified above. However, in emergency or extraordinary
circumstances, each or both parties may seek equitable or injunctive relief to preserve the status
quo pending occurrence of the mediation/arbitration process herein specified. It is the express
intent of both RVPA and RVFD to have any and all disputes under this Subcontract resolved by
the above-specified mediation/arbitration process and in as timely and economical manner as
possible.

SECTION 19. Default

Subject to any extensions of time by mutual consent of the parties in writing, any failure
of either party to timely perform any material obligation of this Subcontract shall constitute an
event of default as to that party, if (i) such defaulting party does not cure such failure within
thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice of default from the other party, where such
failure is of a nature that can be cured within such thirty (30) day period, or (ii) if such failure is
not of a nature which can be cured within a thirty (30) day period, the allegedly defaulting party
does not, within said thirty (3) day period, commence substantial efforts to cure such failure or
thereafter does not, within a reasonable period of time, prosecute to completion with diligence
and continuity the curing of the failure. The time to cure may be extended in writing at the
discretion of the party giving notice. Any notice of default given hereunder shall be served on the
other party and shall specify in detail the nature of the failure(s) in performance which the
noticing party claims constitutes the event of default and the manner in which such default may
be satisfactorily cured in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Subcontract. Failure of
a party to timely cure or commence and diligently prosecute to completion the cure of a material
default of this Subcontract shall entitle the non-defaulting party to terminate this Subcontract in
accordance with the termination provisions set forth herein and/or to pursue all other remedies
available under the dispute resolution process set forth in Section 18 above.

SECTION 20. Equal Opportunity & Non-Discrimination

RVFD and all its employees while performing under this Subcontract shall comply with
the equal opportunity and non-discrimination provisions of all applicable federal, state and local

RVPA/RVED Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -5-



laws, statutes and ordinances. RVFD and its employees shall not discriminate on the basis of
race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, sex, sexual preference, marital status, age, physical
or mental disability in any matters related to access to or provision of services, or related to
employment.

SECTION 21. Termination

This Subcontract may be terminated by one hundred twenty (120) days written notice
being given by either party to the other party. However, if either party considers termination it
must, at least thirty (30) days prior to recommending or proposing any action to effect
termination, give written notice to the other party, including its reasons(s) for contemplating
termination. Within fifteen (15) days after giving such written notice, the parties shall meet to
discuss the contemplated termination, which meeting should include both parties’ involved
representatives, designated liaison persons and legal counsel. An agreed-upon mediator may also
attend if both parties agree to have such a mediator present and agree to equally share all costs of
the mediator. If no written or oral agreement is reached avoiding any contemplated termination,
both parties within fifteen (15) days of meeting shall in a joint written statement recommend that
termination occur and the reasons therefor. Either party then may, at the time or after this joint
statement is made, elect to give the other party the aforementioned 120-day written notice of its
intent to terminate this Subcontract.

SECTION 22. Amendments

This Subcontract shall not be further amended or modified at any time and in any respect
whatsoever except in writing and by both parties hereto. RVPA and RVFD each agrees that it
will make no claim at any time that this Subcontract has been orally amended or modified, and
each agrees that no oral waiver, amendment or modification shall be effective for any purpose.

SECTION 23. Breach & Enforcement

This Subcontract may be pleaded as a full and complete defense to, and may be used as
the basis for a petition/motion against, any action, suit or other proceeding which may be
instituted, prosecuted or maintained in breach of this Subcontract, including but not limited to a
petition/motion to compel mediation and/or arbitration.

SECTION 24. Severability

Should any provision of this Subcontract be determined by any court to be illegal or
invalid, the validity of the remaining parts, terms or provisions shall not be affected thereby, and
said illegal or invalid part, term or provision shall be deemed not to be part of this Subcontract.

SECTION 25. Governing Law

This Subcontract is made and entered into within the State of California, and shall in all
respects be interpreted, enforced and governed under the laws of the State of California, with
venue agreed to be within the County of Marin. The language of all parts of this Subcontract

RVPA/RVFD Subcontract 6-
July 1, 2019



shall in all cases be construed as a whole, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or
against either RVPA or RVFD.

SECTION 26. Parties’ Representations

RVPA and RVFD each represent and acknowledge that, in executing this Subcontract,
they do not rely, and have not relied, upon any representation or statement made by any of their
agents, representatives or attorneys with regard to the subject matter, basis or fact of this
Subcontract or otherwise.

SECTION 27. Binding Upon Successors

This Subcontract shall be binding upon the parties and their administrators,
representatives, executors, successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of the parties,
and each of them, and their administrators, representatives, executors, successors and assigns.

SECTION 28. Headings

The section headings and titles contained in this Subcontract are for convenience and
reference only and are not intended to define, limit, or describe the scope of any provision of this
Subcontract.

SECTION 29. Consent

Whenever any consent or approval is required by this Subcontract, such consent or
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed, except as otherwise
specifically set forth herein.

SECTION 30. Designated Representatives

The Executive Officer of RVPA is its designated representative and will administer this
Subcontract on its behalf. RVFD’s Fire Chief is its designated representative. Changes in
designated representatives shall occur by advance written notice to the other party.

SECTION 31. Notices

All notices and demands of any kind which either party may require or desire to serve on
the other in connection with this Subcontract must be served in writing either by personal service
or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, and shall be deposited in the United
States Mail, with postage thereon fully prepaid, and addressed to the parties to be served as
follows:

If to RVPA:

Executive Officer, Ross Valley Paramedic Authority
P.O. Box 518

RVPA/RVFD Subcontract
July 1, 2019



Woodacre, CA 94973
If to RVED:

Fire Chief, Ross Valley Fire Department
777 San Anselmo Avenue
San Anselmo, CA 94960

Each party shall provide the other with telephonic and written notice of any change of
address as soon as practicable. Notices given by personal delivery or acknowledged shall be
effective immediately.

SECTION 32. Appendices

The following appendices to this Subcontract are attached hereto and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein:

Appendix A Definition of Terms

Appendix B Paramedic Service Area

Appendix C Minimum Requirements

Appendix D Compensation

Appendix E Standard Insurance Requirements
Appendix F General Liability Endorsement Form

SECTION 33. Execution In Counterparts

This Subcontract may be executed on behalf of the parties in one or more counterparts,
all of which collectively shall constitute one document and subcontract.

SECTION 34. Effective Date

The effective date of this Subcontract is the date set forth in the first paragraph hereof,
once this Subcontract is fully executed by each of the parties’ representatives set forth below.

RVPA/RVFD Subcontract 8-
July 1, 2019



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have entered into and executed this
Subcontract as follows:

ROSS VALLEY FIRE

DEPARTMENT
Attest:
By:
President, Board of Directors
Clerk, RVFD
ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC
AUTHORITY
Attest:
By:
Chair, Board of Directors
Clerk, RVPA

RVPA/RVFD Subcontract
July 1, 2019



APPENDIX A
DEFINITION OF TERMS

Advanced Life Support (ALS)

Special services designed to provide definitive pre hospital emergency medical care including
but not limited to, cardiopulmonary resuscitation, cardiac monitoring, cardiac defibrillation,
advanced airway management, intravenous therapy, administration of specified drugs and other
medicinal preparations, and other specified techniques and procedures administered by
authorized personnel under the direct supervision of a base hospital as part of a local EMS
system at the scene of an emergency, during transport to an acute care hospital, during
interfacility transfer, and while in the emergency department of an acute care hospital until
responsibility is assumed by the emergency or other medical staff of that hospital.

Hospital

One of a limited number of hospitals which, upon designation by the local EMS agency and with
a written contractual agreement with the local EMS agency, is responsible for providing medical
direction and supervision of EMT-P personnel in accordance with Title 22, Section 100169.

Hospital ED Physician

A physician and surgeon who is currently licensed in California, who is assigned to the
emergency department of a participating hospital, and who has been trained to issue advice and
instructions to pre-hospital emergency medical care personnel consistent with state-wide
guidelines established by the Emergency Medical Services Authority.

Basic Life Support (BLS)

The level of emergency medical care which includes advanced first aid and cardiopulmonary
resuscitation (CPR) procedures which, as a minimum, include recognizing respiratory and
cardiac arrest and starting the proper application of cardiopulmonary resuscitation to maintain
life without invasive techniques until the victim may be transported or until advanced life
support is available.

Code 2

An urgent, but not emergency, medical response that may result in the transport of a patient.
Method of travel - Respond as soon as possible upon receipt of the call, driving in a manner that
does not violate any posted speed or traffic regulations, using no red lights or siren.

Code 3

An emergent medical response that may result in the transport of a patient.
Method of travel - Respond as soon as possible upon receipt of the call, using due caution, red
lights and siren.

RVPA/RVFED Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -10-



County Communications

The Communications Division of the Sheriffs Department, County of Marin, including all
personnel and equipment attached thereto, designated by County to exercise radio control and to
coordinate emergency medical dispatching, as well as other specific public safety responses.

Dry Run

An ambulance trip, authorized by County Communications, that does not result in patient
contact.

Emergency Medical Technician | (EMT-I)

An individual trained in all facets of basic life support according to the standards proscribed by
the state pursuant to the Health and Safety Code, and who has a valid certificate issued pursuant
to that law.

Emergency Medical Technician Paramedic (EMT-P)

An individual whose scope of practice to provide advanced life support is according to standards
prescribed by state law in the Health and Safety Code, and who has a valid certificate pursuant to
that law.

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Agency

The agency, department, or office having primary responsibility for administration of emergency
medical services within Marin County.

Emergency Medical Services Authority

The state agency within the Health and Welfare Agency with the responsibility, under the Health
and Safety Code, for the development of planning and implementation guidelines for emergency
medical services systems.

Mobile Intensive Care Nurse (MICN)

A registered nurse, employed by a participating hospital and working in a participating hospital
Emergency Department who has been authorized by the EMS Medical Director to provide
instruction to paramedics under the supervision of a hospital ED physician.

Response Times

"To call" time (dispatch interval) --time from receipt of call by dispatch agency to receipt of call
by provider agency or provider agency dispatch.

"To dispatch™ time (in-service interval) --time from receipt of call by provider agency until unit
is "in service". "In service" means response unit wheels are rolling.

"To-scene™ time--time from "in service" to arrival at designated destination--when vehicle
wheels stop rolling.

RVPA/RVFED Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -11-



"At scene" time--time interval between arrival on scene and departure from scene.

"Actual response time"-- time interval from receipt of call by provider agency or provider agency
dispatch until "on scene”. Time used to evaluate contract compliance.

RVPA/RVFED Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -12-



APPENDIX B
PARAMEDIC SERVICE AREA C

Central Marin starting at the summit of Loma Alta at Post H-5 of Rancho Canada de Herrera;
thence northeasterly to the ridge line between Terra Linda and Sleepy Hollow, continuing
southeasterly along the ridge line to the existing city limits of San Rafael; thence southeasterly
along said city limits to the most northerly point of Parcel 6 of County Service Area 19; thence
leaving said city limits southerly along the northwesterly boundary of said CSA 19 to the point
of intersection with the city limits of San Rafael; thence leaving said CSA 19 boundary and
continuing southerly and easterly along the San Rafael limits and the southerly boundary of
Parcel 1 of CSA 19 to a point of intersection of said city limits, the easterly right of way of Sir
Francis Drake Blvd. East and State Highway 17; thence leaving said San Rafael limits and
continuing easterly along the southerly right of way of Highway 17 to the point of intersection
with the shoreline of San Francisco Bay at Point San Quentin; thence southerly along said
shoreline to a point on the northerly boundary of the Tiburon Fire District; thence westerly along
said Fire District boundary and the southerly boundary of Corte Madera to the point of
intersection with the Mill Valley City limits; thence westerly along said limits to the most
northern point of the City of Mill Valley;. thence northwesterly in a direct line to the East Peak
of Mr. Tamalpais; thence southwesterly in a direct line to the northern right of way at the easterly
terminus of Ridgecrest Blvd.; thence following said right of way to the intersection of Pan Toll
Road; thence northwest along Bolinas Ridge Blvd. to the most westerly corner of the 5515.38
acre MMWD parcel as said parcel is described in Book 215 of Official Records at Page 337,
Marin County Records; thence northerly and northwesterly along the westerly boundary of said
MMWD parcel to the most northerly corner thereof, said comer also being on the westerly
boundary of Rancho Canada de Herrera; thence northerly and westerly along said Rancho line to
the point of beginning.

RVPA/RVFED Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -13-



A

A

APPENDIX C
MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS

Coverage Requirements

Must provide continuous 24-hour/day, year-round coverage for all urgent (Code 2)
and emergent (Code 3) medical dispatches in assigned service area.

Must provide a minimum of two ALS staffed Engines to service the RVPA
exclusive operating area. Each unit shall consist of a minimum of one Paramedic and
one firefighter/EMT meeting County of Marin EMS standards.

Must assure the availability of ALS and BLS care to all patients regardless of their
ability to pay. County shall not reimburse Contractor for costs of delivery of indigent
care and dry runs except as otherwise provided.

The desired maximum response time for ALS and BLS units is ten (10) minutes to
90% of emergent calls originating in assigned service area.

Response time components will be recorded by County Communications and
maintained by County. Contractor will be considered to be "in compliance™ with
response time requirements when the 'to dispatch” time is two (2) minutes or less
ninety five percent of the time, reported monthly.

Must respond immediately with available ALS units and/or BLS units in a mutual
aid capacity outside assigned area of responsibility, but within Marin County, if
directed to do so by County Communications.

Must provide, or cause to be provided by agreement or contract, availability of ALS
or BLS unit(s) to assure citizen access to care.

Review of patient care and services will occur as detailed in contractor’s Continuous
Quality Improvement plan, which has been reviewed and approved by, and is on file
with, the EMS Office.

Communication and Dispatch Requirements

Contractor must agree to install, utilize and maintain the appropriate radio equipment
as follows:

1. All ALS and BLS units used for emergency medical response must be
equipped with two-way radios on frequencies designated by County
Communications for the purpose of dispatching by, and status keeping with,
County Communications.

2. Communications equipment, compatible with the existing communications
system, must be installed prior to assignment of a vehicle for zone coverage.

RVPA/RVFED Subcontract

July 1, 2019

-14-



Two-way radios must be operated in conformance with all applicable rules
and regulations of the Federal Communications Commission.

All UHF/VHF radio equipment shall be provided at Contractor's expense.

All mobile data services and hardware for patient care reports shall be
provided at Contractor’s expense.

All mobile and portable radio equipment used must be approved by the
County DPW Communications Shop if they are contracted for repair and
maintenance.

All emergency calls requiring a Code 3 response which Contractor receives
from sources other than County Communications will be reported
immediately to County Communications who shall assume responsibility for
dispatching the most appropriate response as defined in policy.

Dispatching will occur as follows:

1.

Contractor-owned units/ambulances will be dispatched by County
Communications Center utilizing approved Marin County
policies/procedures/and protocols.

All subcontracted ALS and BLS units/ambulances involved in emergency
medical care under this agreement shall be directly dispatched by County
Communications.

Upon receipt of verbal authorization, as promptly as possible, the appropriate
vehicle and crew must be en route to the designated location, proceeding in a
manner specified by EMD protocols. If response will be delayed, Contractor
shall inform County Communications of delay and the need for alternative
response should be evaluated.

Contractor shall inform County Communications of any changes in
availability and status of ALS units and BLS units, in or out of service. Those
vehicles not staffed according to contract requirements shall be out of service
and reported as such to County Communications and the Marin County EMS
Agency within 15 minutes.

ALS units and BLS ambulances will use the unit identification number
designated by County Communications.

II. Equipment and Supply Requirements

A

Vehicles

1.

Ambulance vehicles shall meet standards specified in Title 13, Chapter 2, of
the California Administrative Code.

RVPA/RVFED Subcontract

July 1, 2019

-15-



Vehicles will be maintained cleanly and in good mechanical and body
condition at all times.

Vehicle maintenance shall be performed as per manufacturer
recommendation, with records of same available for inspection as requested
by County.

B.  Safety Equipment: Safety Equipment to be carried on all ambulances and maintained
in good working order shall include those items listed as requirements by the
California Administrative Code and as recommended by Title 22 of the Health and
Safety Code.

C. In addition to the above, units will carry all equipment listed in the Marin County
EMS Policy and Procedure Manual, “ALS Non-transport Supply/Equipment
Requirement”, policy #5005, or “ALS First Responder”, policy #8105, as
appropriate.

V. Relationship with the County Department of Health and Human Services:

A. Committees

1.

Contractor will designate a member of the Pre-hospital Medical Care
Committee, a standing committee of the Emergency Medical Care
Committee and advisory to the EMS Medical Director and EMS Program
Administrator.

a. Designation is to assure Contractor input during formulation or change
in EMS system policies and procedures.

b. Designation is to assure that Contractor is informed as to system
direction and change as discussed in on-going meetings.

B. Data Collection

1.

Contractor agrees to utilize standardized ambulance records as designated by
County.

Contractor agrees to supply to County other statistical information as
mutually agreed upon.

County agrees to supply to Contractor statistical information as mutually
agreed upon and related to Contractor's service area.

C.  System Coordination

1.

2.

Contractor will work cooperatively with County to plan for, implement and
maintain a coordinated and integrated emergency medical services system.

Contractor will maintain complete financial records pertinent to and during
the performance of this Subcontract.

RVPA/RVFED Subcontract

July 1, 2019

-16-



3. All records maintained pursuant to this Subcontract shall be available for
inspection, audit, or examination by the EMS Medical Director or designee
and shall be preserved by the Contractor for at least three (3) years from the
termination of this Subcontract.

4. EMS Medical Director or designee may inspect vehicles and records during
normal business hours, without prior notice, to verify Contractor compliance
with the terms and conditions of this Subcontract.

5. Contractor shall designate a single individual as liaison between the EMS
Office, the hospitals, and the Provider Agency.

D. Public Education

1. Contractor shall be active in providing public education to the community it
serves (e.g. CPR, 911 campaign, general EMS awareness, etc.).

2. Public education programs shall be coordinated and consistent with
objectives established by the parties to this agreement.

RVPA/RVFED Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -17-



A.

B.

APPENDIX D
COMPENSATION

Compensation

RVPA will compensate RVFD for the services provided
pursuant to this Subcontract in accordance with the
following annual 2019-2020 compensation schedule
(RVFD will provide RVPA with an updated compensation
schedule by April 30" of each subsequent year of the
Subcontract not to exceed a 3% increase per year):

RVFD Summary of RVFD Engine Company Paramedic
Cost — 9 Medics
W/ UAL $232,394

FYE 2020 through FYE 2024 includes 3% salary
adjustment

FYE 2022 — 2024 does not include any change in the
Pension Normal Cost

$5,000 Administration

$12,000 for Medical Supplies

RVPA will make payments to RVFD on a quarterly basis.

Additional Terms

RVPA has determined that paramedic engine companies
can reduce the response times for ALS intervention to the
benefit of residents within its area. RVFD will provide
advanced life support training to its employees and assign
them on all engines for quicker response time.

RVPA will make available to RVFD certain equipment
items that RVPA deems necessary for the operation of an
advanced life support service. RVFD will be responsible
for proper operation and maintenance of the equipment and
agrees to return this equipment to RVPA upon termination
of this Subcontract, in good condition excepting normal
wear and usage during the term of the Subcontract. Costs of
maintenance not arising out of normal wear and usage and
not caused by negligence of Subcontractor will be covered
by RVPA.

RVPA/RVFD Subcontract 18-

July 1, 2019



Iii. The paramedic engine company budget for services
rendered by RVFD for each fiscal year after 2019-2020
shall be presented to the Board of Directors of RVPA no
later than the preceding April 30" and approved by the
RVPA Board no later than June 30" preceding the
beginning of the next fiscal year. The parties acknowledge
that these dates may be waived if extraordinary
circumstances such as delayed labor contract negotiations
S0 require or upon mutual agreement of both RVPA and
RVFD.

iv. Except as otherwise provided herein, RVFD agrees to
manage the research, acquisition and maintenance of all
medical equipment and supplies necessary for the provision
of services pursuant to this Subcontract.

V. All monies owed to either party and not paid when due
shall earn interest at the rate charged by the Local Agency
Adjustment Fund.

It is intended by the parties hereto that this Appendix D relating to compensation may be
amended annually or as otherwise needed by means of written addendum without the necessity
of amending this entire Subcontract.

RVPA/RVFD Subcontract -19-
July 1, 2019



APPENDIX E
STANDARD INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Unless RVPA and RVFD agree otherwise, prior to rendering services provided by the terms and
conditions of this Subcontract, RVFD shall acquire and maintain during the term of this
Subcontract insurance coverage, through and with an insurer acceptable to RVPA, naming
RVPA and its officials, employees, and volunteers as additional insured, (hereinafter referred to
as "the insurance™). The limits of insurance herein shall not limit the liability of RVFD

hereunder.

1. Except for professional liability coverage said policies shall be in effect until final
acceptance of RVFD’s work by RVPA and shall provide that they may not be canceled
without first providing RVPA with thirty (30) days written notice of such intended
cancellation. If RVFD fails to maintain the insurance provided herein, RVPA may secure
such insurance and deduct the cost thereof from any funds owing to RVFD.

2. Minimum Scope of Insurance. RVFD shall procure insurance covering general liability,
automobile liability, and workers’ compensation. Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

@) Insurance Services Office (ISO) Commercial General Liability Occurrence form
number CG 0001 or equivalent ISO form. A non-1SO form must be reviewed by
RVFD prior to acceptance of the Subcontract.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in (e)(ii)(bb) Insurance Services Office form
number CA 0001 (Ed. 1/87) covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 "any auto"
and Endorsement CA 0029.

(©) Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of
California and Employers Liability insurance.

(d) Professional Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance, coverage form subject to
RVFD Approval.

3. Other Insurance Provisions. The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the

following provisions:

(@)

General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages. RVPA and its officials,
employees and volunteers are to be covered as insureds as respects: liability
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of RVFD; products and
completed operations of RVFD; premises owned, leased or used by RVFD; or
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by RVFD. The coverage shall
contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to RVPA, its
officials, employees or volunteers.

M RVFD’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects RVPA,
its officials, employees and volunteers and any other insureds under this
contract. Any insurance of self-insurance maintained by RVPA, its

RVPA/RVFED Subcontract

July 1, 2019

-20-



officials, employees and volunteers or other insureds shall be excess of
RVFD’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

(i) Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not
affect coverage provided to RVPA, its officials, employees and volunteers
or other insureds under this contract.

(i) Coverage shall state that RVFD’s insurance shall apply separately to each
‘insured’ against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

(b) Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage.
(c) Professional Errors and Omissions insurance.

1. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state
that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party,
reduced in coverage or in limits except aft.er thirty (30) days prior written
notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to RVPA.

4. Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current AM.

Best's rating of no less than A-VII if admitted. A non-admitted insurer shall have a Best’s
rating of no less than A-X.

5. Minimum Limits of Insurance. RVFD shall maintain limits no less than:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Commercial General Liability: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single
limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage with a
general aggregate limit of $2,000,000.

Automobile Liability: Subject to the option of RVPA either: (aa) $1,000,000
combined single limit per accident for bodily injury or property damage or; (bb)
Personal Automobile liability coverage of $500,000 bodily injury and property
damage.

Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability: Workers' compensation limits
as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and Employers Liability
limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident.

Professional Errors and Omissions Liability: Policy limits of not less than One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per incident and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)
annual aggregate, with deductible or self-insured portion not to exceed Two
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500). Coverage may be made on a
claims-made basis with a "Retro Date" either prior to the date of the Subcontract
or the Beginning of the Subcontract work. If claims-made, coverage must extend
to a minimum of twelve (12) months beyond completion of project. If coverage is
canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims made policy form
with a "Retro Date" prior to the contract effective date, RVFD must purchase

RVPA/RVFD Subcontract 21-

July 1, 2019



"extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of twelve (12) months after
completion of contract work.

6. In addition to the above policies, if RVFD is to hire a subcontractor under this
Subcontract, RVFD shall require subcontractor to provide insurance identical to the
coverage required under this Subcontract, and- shall require subcontractor to name RVPA
as additional insured under its Subcontract. Certificate(s) of Insurance(s) and original
endorsement(s) providing such coverage shall be provided to RVPA under Paragraph 6
(h) of this Subcontract.

7. Deductibles and Self-Insured retentions. Except as otherwise provided in this
Subcontract, any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved
by RVPA. At the option of RVPA: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles
or self-insured retentions as respects RVPA, its officials and employees; or RVFD shall
procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim
administration and defense expenses.

8. Verification of Coverage. RVFD shall furnish RVPA with Certificate(s) of Insurance and
with original endorsement(s) affecting coverage required by this clause. The certificate(s)
and endorsement(s) for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by
that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The certificate(s) and endorsement(s) are to be
on forms provided by RVPA or on forms received and approved by it before work
commences. RVPA reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required
insurance policies, at any time.

9. RVFD shall not render services under the terms and conditions of this Subcontract unless
each type of insurance coverage and endorsement is in effect and it has delivered the
certificate(s) of insurance and endorsement(s) to RVPA as previously described. If RVFD
fails to procure and maintain said insurance, RVPA may, but shall not be required to,
procure and maintain the same, and the premiums of such insurance shall be paid by
RVFD to RVPA upon demand. The policies of insurance provided herein which are to be
provided by RVFD shall be for a period of not less than one year, it being understood and
agreed that thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any policy of insurance, RVFD will
deliver to RVPA a renewal or new policy to take the place of the policy expiring.

10. RVPA shall have the right to request such further coverages and/or endorsements on the
insurance as it deems necessary, at RVFD’s expense. The amounts, insurance policy
forms, endorsement(s) and insurer(s) issuing the insurance shall be satisfactory to RVPA
in its sole and absolute discretion.

RVPA/RVFED Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -22-



APPENDIX F
GENERAL LIABILITY ENDORSEMENT FORM

(Current Form To Be Obtained/Approved By Parties)

RVPA/RVFED Subcontract

July 1, 2019 -23-



Account

City of Larkspur, CA

Name

Fund: 705 - ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC

705-0046-000-003000

Packet Number
APPKT05198

Post Date
12/18/2019

705-0046-001-012003

Packet Number
APPKT05168

Post Date
12/06/2019

705-0046-001-012012

Packet Number
APPKT05168

Post Date
12/06/2019

705-0046-001-012038

Packet Number
APPKT05168

Post Date
12/06/2019

705-0046-002-028010

Post Date Packet Number
12/06/2019 APPKT05168
12/06/2019 APPKT05168
12/06/2019 APPKT05168
12/18/2019 APPKT05198
12/18/2019 APPKT05198
12/18/2019 APPKT05198
12/18/2019 APPKT05198
12/18/2019 APPKT05198
12/18/2019 APPKT05198

705-0046-004-090002

Packet Number
APPKT05198

Post Date
12/18/2019

PART TIME

Source Transaction Pmt Number
RVPA 12/05/2019 77180

ALS BACK UP

Source Transaction Pmt Number
18-499707 - 19-47400 77128

CONSULTANT

Source Transaction Pmt Number
14-076 77145

TRANSPORT BILLING FEES

Source Transaction Pmt Number
19100247 77143

DISPOSABLE MEDICAL SUPPLIES

Source Transaction Pmt Number

1932 77138
83422870 77125
83429017 77125
83437182 77173
83438572 77173
83440140 77173
9501954081 77215
9501954084 77215
9966926105 77166
MISC

Source Transaction Pmt Number
T711940000229 77183

Description

RVPA - Board Meeting Minutes 12/05/2019

Description
RVPA - 19-499707 - 19-47400 ALS Backup

Description
RVPA - Web Hosting & Support

Description
RVPA - Ambulance Billing OCT 2019

Description

RVPA - Controlled Substance Tracking
RVPA - Disposable Medical Supplies
RVPA - Disposable Medical Supplies
RVPA - Disposable Medical Supplies
RVPA - Disposable Medical Supplies
RVPA - Disposable Medical Supplies
RVPA - Power Driver

RVPA - Disposable Medical

RVPA - Oxygen Rental

Description
RVPA - T711940000229 Toll Violation

Vendor
1236 - DeFrancis, Toni

Vendor
5778 - Corte Madera Fire Dept.

Vendor

4273 - XMRFire Emergency Services Consulting

Vendor
1162 - WITTMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC

Vendor

5862 - PSTrax.com / Station Automation, Inc

4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
6049 - Teleflex LLC

6049 - Teleflex LLC

1644 - AIRGAS USA, LLC

Vendor
2747 - FasTrak

Detail Report
Account Detall

Date Range: 12/01/2019 - 12/31/2019

Beginning Balance

720.00

Project Account

15,825.30

Project Account

0.00

Project Account

13,862.13

Project Account

23,437.35

Project Account

0.00

Project Account

Total Activity Ending Balance

120.00 840.00

Amount  Running Balance
120.00 840.00

9,949.81 25,775.11

Amount  Running Balance
9,949.81 25,775.11

2,841.25 2,841.25

Amount  Running Balance
2,841.25 2,841.25

3,540.23 17,402.36

Amount  Running Balance
3,540.23 17,402.36

5,911.65 29,349.00

Amount  Running Balance

1,549.99 24,987.34
1,293.60 26,280.94
949.36 27,230.30
14.05 27,244.35
146.90 27,391.25
112.58 27,503.83
326.98 27,830.81
1,202.94 29,033.75
315.25 29,349.00
31.00 31.00

Amount  Running Balance
31.00 31.00

1/14/2020 11:48:58 AM

Page 1 of 3



Detail Report
Account

705-0046-007-075002

Packet Number
APPKT05168

Post Date
12/06/2019

705-0046-008-087001

Packet Number
APPKT05198

Post Date
12/18/2019

Name

PMTS TO OTHR AGENCIES

Pmt Number
77129

Source Transaction
GEMO012067AE

OTHER EQUIPMENT/BUILDING

Source Transaction Pmt Number
8155 30 005 0005735 ... 77177

Total Fund: 705 - ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC:

Description

RVPA - Quality Assurance Fee Q3 2019

Description
RVPA - Internet Services DEC 2019

Vendor
5843 - Department of Health Care Services / ...

Vendor
4741 - Comcast - RVPA / Rescue 40

Date Range: 12/01/2019 - 12/31/2019

Beginning Balance

0.00

Project Account

394.75

Project Account

Total Activity
9,515.55

Amount
9,515.55

78.95

Amount
78.95

Ending Balance

9,515.55

Running Balance
9,515.55

473.70

Running Balance
473.70

Beginning Balance: 54,239.53

Total Activity: 31,988.44

Ending Balance: 86,227.97

Grand Totals:

Beginning Balance: 54,239.53

Total Activity: 31,988.44

Ending Balance: 86,227.97

1/14/2020 11:48:58 AM

Page 2 of 3



Detail Report

Fund

705 - ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC
Grand Total:

Beginning Balance

54,239.53

Total Activity
31,988.44

Date Range: 12/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Fund Summary

Ending Balance

86,227.97

54,239.53

31,988.44

86,227.97

1/14/2020 11:48:58 AM

Page 3 of 3



Account

City of Larkspur, CA

Name

Fund: 705 - ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC

705-0046-002-021000

Post Date
01/21/2020

Packet Number
APPKT05246

705-0046-002-028010

Post Date

01/21/2020
01/21/2020
01/21/2020
01/21/2020
01/21/2020
01/21/2020
01/28/2020
01/28/2020
01/28/2020
01/28/2020
01/28/2020

Packet Number
APPKT05242
APPKT05242
APPKT05242
APPKT05242
APPKT05242
APPKT05242
APPKT05264
APPKT05264
APPKT05264
APPKT05264
APPKT05264

705-0046-004-040000

Post Date
01/28/2020
01/28/2020

Packet Number
APPKT05264
APPKT05264

705-0046-004-090002

Post Date
01/21/2020

Packet Number
APPKT05242

705-0046-008-087001

Post Date
01/21/2020

Packet Number
APPKT05242

AUTOMOTIVE FUELS

Source Transaction

FUEL JUL - SEP 2019

Pmt Number
77310

DISPOSABLE MEDICAL SUPPLIES

Source Transaction
024280
83435772
83450161
83452795
83456198
83457696
2141807
83470414
83472060
83472061
9967689407

POSTAGE

Source Transaction
6-874-61638
6-899-72681

MISC

Source Transaction
1692041943395

Pmt Number
77282
77282
77282
77282
77282
77282
77341
77344
77344
77344
77341

Pmt Number
77352
77351

Pmt Number
77291

OTHER EQUIPMENT/BUILDING

Source Transaction

Pmt Number

8155 30 005 0005735 ... 77285

Description
RVPA - FUEL JUL - SEP 2019

Description

RVPA - 2019 Q3 Naloxone Rebate
RVPA - Disposable Medical Supplies
RVPA - Disposable Medical Supplies
RVPA - Disposable Medical Supplies
RVPA - Disposable Medical Supplies
RVPA - Disposable Medical Supplies
RVPA - Oxygen Rental

RVPA - Disposable Medical Supplies
RVPA - Disposable Medical Supplies
RVPA - Disposable Medical Supplies
RVPA - Oxygen Rental

Description
RVPA - Shipping Charges
RVPA - Shipping Charges

Description

RVPA - LIC 1537397 1692041943395 Toll

Description
RVPA - Internet Services JAN 2020

Vendor
1057 - Ross Valley Fire Department

Vendor

4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
1644 - AIRGAS USA, LLC
4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
4495 - Bound Tree RVPA
1644 - AIRGAS USA, LLC

Vendor
1700 - FEDEX
1700 - FEDEX

Vendor
6083 - Golden Gate Bridge / Fastrak

Vendor
4741 - Comcast - RVPA / Rescue 40

Detail Report

Account Detail
Date Range: 01/16/2020 - 01/31/2020

Beginning Balance Total Activity Ending Balance

0.00 2,639.03 2,639.03

Project Account Amount  Running Balance
2,639.03 2,639.03

29,349.00 4,870.66 34,219.66

Project Account Amount  Running Balance
-60.00 29,289.00

760.60 30,049.60

365.34 30,414.94

52.50 30,467.44

197.78 30,665.22

84.74 30,749.96

325.26 31,075.22

393.43 31,468.65

2,453.66 33,922.31

1.30 33,923.61

296.05 34,219.66

637.11 359.88 996.99

Project Account Amount  Running Balance
317.97 955.08

4191 996.99

31.00 8.35 39.35

Project Account Amount  Running Balance
8.35 39.35

473.70 78.95 552.65

Project Account Amount  Running Balance
78.95 552.65

2/4/2020 10:55:37 AM

Page 1 of 3



Detail Report

Date Range: 01/16/2020 - 01/31/2020

Account Name Beginning Balance Total Activity Ending Balance
705-0046-008-087008 OTHER EQUIPMENT 840.29 2,862.14 3,702.43
Post Date Packet Number Source Transaction Pmt Number Description Vendor Project Account Amount  Running Balance
01/21/2020 APPKT05246 ROSS001 77314 RVPA - FC 2036 Monitor System 6080 - Technimount System 2,862.14 3,702.43
Total Fund: 705 - ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC:  Beginning Balance: 31,331.10 Total Activity: 10,819.01 Ending Balance: 42,150.11
Grand Totals:  Beginning Balance: 31,331.10 Total Activity: 10,819.01 Ending Balance: 42,150.11
2/4/2020 10:55:37 AM Page 2 of 3



Detail Report

Fund

705 - ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC
Grand Total:

Beginning Balance

31,331.10

Total Activity
10,819.01

Date Range: 01/16/2020 - 01/31/2020
Fund Summary

Ending Balance

42,150.11

31,331.10

10,819.01

42,150.11

2/4/2020 10:55:37 AM

Page 3 of 3



-

wittmanenterp rises

INVOICE 19110247

TO: Ross Valley RPA
FROM: Wittman Enterprises
DATE: December 19, 2019
FOR: Billing Services Performed in November 2019

Gross Collections $ 78,969.60
$ -
Less Refunds $ 7.373.41
Net Collections $ 71,596.19
Fee Based on 3.99% of Net Collections $ 2,856.69

CURRENT MONTH BALANCE: §  2,856.69

TOTAL AMOUNT: §  2,856.69

Wittman Enterprises, LLC | 11093 Sun Center Drive, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 | 800.906.6552 ph | 916.381.5047 fax | www.webillems.com



SI'0IE001 § puont
1d sjuomleg
. | adesary
66°LES'TIE § Quour aod
sa3aey)) aBeaAY
%10 VIl ! T "7 "anNaAay
13N 40
ADVINIOHAd
e S P B _ _ B ! S U SR alA
%000 %S0l %S0°€ %yo'le [%90'1 %01C¢ TowtTLT %05°T %E1'8 %6901 %9 IS ~ 1 ANNIATY 40
AOVINIDHA
R _ S ES R SRR B O F R LLA D,
1YL $ | v0L8T6E $ | 00 TITPINS | SUEHIHOI'T $ | 09°8LS'6F $ | 8LTTZL€0Z'T  § | ISTZIIZOTT $ | €€SOL°E6 S| SITHBPOE  $ | O1LT6'00F $ | 18°658°626'1$ | 06'SSHOSLE $ | STVLOL ALVA
B} S Ul G SV . _ . oo | OL ¥VIA |
08'ST0'66€ S| - $|(8€901) S| 61SIT6 8 |6196STL  $| IVELEL § | 096968L S eSLIveL  §1iL965L S| 9691L71T  $ | v6€L99f § | SOIEEOrl § | LT9ELS8T  § | 61, dHHWIAON]
STEIC00Y $ | 800 $]099vsT  $[00660C §|6SLZL88 §| - $|65LTL88  $|0L6T088 S | LSOPPTI $|697ISTC  $|0509v'6T S| 00069LS1 $ | 9V EEI0IE § | 61, 4AGOLIO0
99°959°50F $ | £5°C s - $|6ceLrL s|eisosys s - $|€1S0sP8 S| vL 130101 § 1 90°€6TL S| €E09L°€l S| SSYECIE $| 7891091 $ | 0SFPerEIE  § | 61, YFAWHLAHS|
| 160657966 §| - $| - $|6L901T1 $|85086%611 §| -  §|85086611 $ 5586806 8| L6SKTSI $|sLo6l'sl s |syiecve § | 1TL68'€El § | €6€C9°L8T  $ | 61,1LSNDNV
EL6LLLEY $ | LO6 $|ol'sty S| 96LIvL S| O1'L06Tv]  § | LYSI9T § | LSSTS'SHI S| 1r'eve'96  $ | 960TS'L $| 910810 $|T098LT § | S0P96'OLI S | 19°09v°6ZE § 61 ATNI
iLsiey $100St S| - s|wewiis s|oceTse  §| - $ | oL€LTss $ | cTvzv’ool  $ | £v'968°1 S| BE19T9E S| S6L0L°LY $| 119SO0LI § | O1'9¥E9SE 61, ANNS
8808516V $| - $]1L88%Y §[007e9E §|9etTE9s  §| - $ | 9EVTE96  $ | TTosT00l  § | €ILSEY  § | 8SV689T | EIERSSE § | SYVEVILL S| ISS8PREE S | 6L AVIN
€L'991°96F §| - $|OIssty §|vT1EC8  §|€90£998  §| L6196 § | 0986516 $ | L6Q0IEIl  $ | 168L5S  § | €6906ST S | VI19SST § | €8'6EYOLI § | BTE6SOPE S 61, TIdV
6L9LET8Y $ 1070 $| - s|scLossc $|sevie9s  §| - S| SEvL696 S| 0915189 § | whESIOL $|1L6vL6E S| €69090€ $ | €SH0ETSE $ | 1290010 § 61 HO4VIN
| 60080°LIS $ 0061  $|6SVELS $|bOVESST S| 6L601°C01 8 | L609I'L $ | 9LOLTZII S| 1zs6c'ss §189610T  §|689069T §| IcyIoEl S| 066l vyl $ | 680602, § | 61, AdVNGH]
0E8YI'lLS § | LSTE $|8IEI8T $|Ss869%Wl | vo9eLell S| -  §|vootL'cll S| ISLIvLY S| 198I¥01  $ | 1€L0TST 5] S1668'SS $| 6596 LI § | Lb6EEOIE S| 61 AAVINVI
679¥6959 $ | 920 $ | T0€Es Ol § | SILbL'6 $| TILLETY  $ | 8LLSHLI $ | 06VEB6L s zszer'os s o8erl’s $|96vssTE  § | €188€TE $ | 97986 PLI $ | L9SOTSOE § | 81 ¥FANIOAA
FONVIVE [SINAWISAFAY| S440 $440  SINIWAVA LIN SANNJAA | SINAWAVd [SADUVHD LAN|SNMOA ALIEM | SNMOd SNMOd SNMOd SIDUAVHD
WV MAN FLIAM ALIAM TVALOVEINOD|  ALIIM ALTHM ALIAAM
1930 avg HAHLO INIQISHY TVOW AAVOW

Sjejol ALRIOHLNY JIQ3NVYYVd ASTTVA SSOY




T B %pLTI B o N | anNzAz™

LAN 40
IDVINIOHAD

N O AR I o . . N O R S __alA
%000 1%61°0 %IST %9T €€ %590 %C6'EL %0567 %8 € %66'S %9% 01 “loLL 08 " |"anNaAzd 10
IDVINIOHAd
o S L 1 _aix

T T8 865987 § | €ETIEBE $ | 650ILLOS $ | 881666 $ | LP'BOLLIS  $ | S69EE0SY § | €£€L60°0S $ | 6809616 | 9v'909'6S1 § | VILVOSLL § | LL8YHOTST § [STVLOL ALVA

T oL o i R e OL ¥ViA
(R R R S e s o L ouaNn
S R - $ " $ S S 4. OuAVA
1 - $ B o - $| o - 0z, TRV
o . - s - s o 0z HOAVN
R e - s - s| - 0z, AYv1agad
=8 - N - $ - $ - 1 0T AMVANVE
R - $ R - $ 1 61, 93GWE08d
| 08520°c6€ $ | - $[(8€901) S| 6ISIT6 $|6196STL S| IVELEL S| 096968L  $ | SSLIVEL | LL'9ESL S| 9691L° 1T $| v6'€L9'9E S| SOIEEOVT § | LTOEL'S8T  $ | 61, YTAWHAON
STEIE00Y_$ | 800 $]099¥ST $|00660C $|65LTL88 S| - S | 652TL88 $|oL6z088  § | LSOVKTI $|e9ziszc  $|0s09v'6C $| 00069251 § | 9P EEIDIE  $ | 61, ¥IFOLOO]
99'959°50v_ 8 | £5°C C$| - slecerl s|ercosts  s| - $ | £1505%8 $ | vLI0 101§ [ 90'€6TL $ [ €E09L'€l S| SSHECIE $ | T8EOI091 $ | OSPOYELE  § | 61, YHENALAES
[ 1606s'96€ $| - s - s|eLo0lcl $|850866I S| - $85086'611  $]5586806  § | L6'SHTSI S| SLO6IEl S| ShI6EE §| ITL6BEEI § | €6€C9L8T § 61, 1SNONV
EL6LLLEY $|L06  $|9I'STy S| 96LIVL $ | OULO6TYI  § | LVBIOT §|LSSTS'SPI  $| [W6V696  § | 960TSL S| 9108107 §|co9v8LT S| 90¥969LL $ | 1909V 6CE  § 61, A0

IONVIVE [SINFWISArAv| sd440 SI40  SINAWAVA L3N SANNJT¥ | SINIWAV ~ [SIDEVHO LAN|SNMOG ALIEM |  SNMOA SNMOd SNMOd SADAVHO
WV MIAN CUAL PN ALIM TVOLOVEINOD|  JLIIM ALIM ALIAM
Lg3d ave YAHLO INAQISTY IVOW TAVOW

0Z-61 JedA |easld ST AojjeA ssoy




%CE 66 | anNaazd

L3N 40
ADVINIOUAL
RS G ] - IS I R S (U P S N S S O (1, S
%00°0 %970 %69'1 %0E 6T %SE0 %9967 %05 6T %11'T %I19'9 %9% 01 %IELS T ]anNIATA 40
ADVINIOWAL

I S I n 1 L 1 . o aia
) 18°L¥ $|ovivL's § | IESYYES § | ITTLY001T $|61'C0TEl §| OSSLOEIT  § | LE666LOITT $ | 9S91T6L S| 6LESEBYT  § | L6'LBLTIGE $ | TOEEOLIET $ | 1L 06€°SSLE § [STVLOL ALVA
. S O ] ] ~ . |_OL ¥vax |
 gc1svzee §| - §| - $|096r0'6 $19£77889  $| 506589 §|1v189°L S| voT68VL S| EVOYIL $ | Lz€Teor §89°SEP9E § | STSYPOPI  $ | LTOEL'SST  § | 61, YHHNAAON
 0619v°S8¢ $[800 $[099¥ST S |OoUIs6l S| Icecobs8  §, - S| IE€0v8y §|8vELEr6  $|68299  §|69TISTC  $|0S09V6T § | ¥8LSILST $ | 9veEl0le §| 61, yIEOLO0
ir686€8e $[esT  §| - s|eceLy’L $|c089618  §| - $| 5089618  $|LE€6S90I  $|€TT66'S S| S6VI96 S| €16TITIE §| T8FOI091 | OSHEHEIE  § | 61, dAEWILATS
| s6vER99e | - sl - $]0sve90l § | oTTHOLIT 8| - $|0TTHOLIl S| 61ST096 S| OLPEEE] S| orove’s S| LEOTHYE § | ITL6BEEL S | €6€C9L8T  $ 61, LSNONV
ov98Y86E $ (9T0) S| olstk  §|O0L691°C | ¥SLOOLEl § | SHIIST $|668I10VI  $|8806L901 $|ST69LS S| PLEIEST $|097168'ST § | ¥I'G69°CLL  $ | 1909¥'6ZE 61, A0S
vZ868°TEr $ | 00°SI $| - Slevsple $]96986¢6 S| - $ | 96986°¢6 § | 6T609°€01  § | £v968°1 S| vLs6l'ce  §| €S88SLy $|119s0'0L1  $ | 01'9¥E9SE S 61, INAS
vEeoYoTy §| - $|LT8erT $1TeOTVI S| 90bTEL8  §| - $ | 90vzeLs S | vE'8TE001  § | €1LSEY $|€c1e99z  §| 19€eL’se $|OUSHPILL | 1ss8¥8eEe §| 6L AVA
| soeozzly §| - S| LTS6S  §| €1ThOE S| EVELOU8  §|9ISLY  § | 658YIEe $|cLe0T'sTl § | zeTory $|oseor'el  §| v8T8Y'ST $| €9PO6TLT  $ | 10ESSOVE  § 61, TRIdY
[ocvocese §{oco §| - SITroesT S|6L1z€88 §| - §[6L1TE88 $|6vi6T8  §| 1921701 $19L¥EvT  §| €1'L¥STE $| 00L86'0S1  $ | LTHIOIOE § 61, HOUVIN
820166 $ 10051 $|00LIEE $|CCSITEL § | LETvY 10l § | BLSEOE $|SULLYPOL  $|C9ST9S8 | 66THOC S| 891vIHT  §|9€6hSel §| v0Oer9'opl $|692007LT § | 61 AMVNAATA]
| zgovo'ezy $100s1 S| - S|vrr0osL S[8Iv0E68  §| - [ 81'H0E6s $1906069  §|96TvC8  §|8SI810C  §| ¥L868°ES $ | T96S6LI1 $ | 96LSESIE $| 6L AUVANVI
[ 8e6s9'ssy §1oc0 s |olsty  $| - $|989L58C S| SL1ZE  $ | 19868°8S $] 9819599  §95109'8 $ | +7189°SC  § | 8v°099°0C $ | 9TLLOPLT $ | OVTRISOE  § | 81, WAGWHAOH(|

ADNVIVE |[SINIWISAFQY| SA40 S440  BINIWAVA LIN SANNATY | SINIWAVA [SIDUVHO LAN|SNAOA ALIUM | SNMOQ SNMOd SNMOd SIDAVHI
WV MAN ALRM ALAM TVALOVHINOD|  FLIEM ALAM ALY
14934@ gavd YAHLO INAQISTE TVIW AUVOW

IO MON AdjjeA SSOY




%67 €L- ) ANNIATT

LiN 40
ADVINIDYIAL

] I R IR ‘ R R ) ] N B dalA
%8S 0 %09'865  |%EL'BTOI-  |%bT06TI %8y PES-  |%TL V81 %IS09L1 %09 €6Z- %69 rr11- %E6 V91 %8T LS- | 40N3AFTH 40 |
FOVINIDOUA

R R . o o . - aix
[ 0697 $ 18566567 $ 699,08 § | LOTLYES  $ | IVSLEGT § | 8Y'9¥0°06 $ |(98°228°98) | LL'88Y VI §9c88b°9S  $ | €16E18  $|6L9T8T 8 $ [STVIOL ALVA
R B ‘ o S ) e . _ i OL ¥VIA |
FZevrsol $) - s|(8901)  $6SS91  §|€8ecLT  §|9ewIS  $|6188TE $[orr' D $|loger) T §le9€eEl  $19z8er $[(ozvlD  $| - $] 61, dIGWIAON
seisgyl $t - 8| - $Iv8ivl  $|8THE $| - s|sTyze $|(8Leve'9)  slzorigs s - g - $|otzes 8| - $| 61,¥380100
STL99'1T §| - $| - $] - $|80LEST $| - $]80LEsT $ [(€9'155°¢)  $ | €8°00€°1 $i8csvly $iTysol  $| - §| - $ | 61, ¥IGWHLAAS
96ssL6T $| - $| - $[6TTLYL $ | 8EBE6T $| - $|8e8c6C  $1(p99zI'9)  §1LT1I6] $|lecvvze  $iesy)  §| - 8] - $| 6L1SNONV
LTeeT6E $|€c6 8| - $|oT8vTy $19566TS  $|T0LOI  $|8S90bS $ |y ipg'e)  ${ILISLI $|Tv998y  sicvvsel $|zesoTt $| - 0§ 61 ATINSC
E $| - $ ] 159207 $ | ¥L'98C1 $| - $ | ¥L'98C°1 $ [(oosg1’'e) 3§ - $[vos90c  SiTwell  $| - s| - $|  eLaANS
YSILISS §| - $|vbivvT $|89NITT $10€0006  $| - $ | 0€°000°6 $ |zizy s - $ | sTeoz § {(8v081)  § [(s901) $| - $ 61 AV
80°€068L $| - $ 68658 $|11681°s ${(08Zv0’l)  § | I8T6PY $ | 100SY'E $ [(5LZ01Z1)  $ | 65980°1 $le6TrpTI  $ ]| 0€8L $ [(08' v’ D) $| LTOV $; 6L TnddV
€0710%66 S| - $| - $|eevve’e §]95TS98 $| - $ | 957598 § |(zeeoL'yl)  §1L1D) $|orzor'st  sllozore’D) $|ESLIET  $((908) s 61, HOYVI]
vrTel'stl $| - $lesiivT $|T88IeSl §Ty899c  §|6ISTly  § ) 19€6LL $ [(1voge) sy $|1T9LT  $| 89 $ [(b1'8v¥D) $ | 0T8T $| 61, AdvVNILS
| stLos'vl $ | LSLt $81EI8y $|1I'v689 8| ovTevye  §| - $iovzer'ye 8 |(STLSYLD)  § | SYSLIT §|€eLszos  $|14000C  $|L69erE  §|(6¥810°9) S| 61 AAVANVI
1698102 $| - $ 9840191 §|StLbL'e § | 92008°€ $ | €09CI°LT $ | 629€6°0C § [(be6zv0l)  SivTTyS  $|zeel8c  §|S9LTLS $|0060E  $ | LTET § | 81, y3aWadda

| | FONVIVE [SINZWISNFAV|  S490 S440  BINIWAVA LIN SANNATY | SINIAWAVA [STIOUVHD LAN|{SNAOA LM | SNMOd SNMOa SNMOd SADUVHD
WV MIN ALEM ALEM TYALOVIINOD |  ILIYM ALRIM ALEM

1493a ave YJIHLO INFAISTA TVON TAVOW

¥40M PIO AdljEA SSOY




vdy AajleA ssoy
ajeq o0} Jea) {easi4 pue Ajyjuon
podey Aewwng Juawabeuepw

%00°004 L¥'80L°L1SS %00°00% 09°696°8.% %00°004 11°8v¥'925°LS | %0000 12°9¢L'682% %00°004 209 %0000} (373 1ejot
%000 000$ %000 00°0% %000 000$ %000 000$ %000 0 %000 0 suny Aig
%0000} 1v'804'215% %0000} 09'696'8.% %00°00} 20°8v¥'925°1S |%00°001 12'9£2'682$ %0000} 209 %00°001 Ll jejol qng

%ELL SLvIZ'LLS %EL'L 99°2v6'v$ sojeg J0lid
%L€°L y2.80'L$ %v0°C PLELY'LS %.LYy'8 86'86Z'621$ %916 65/81°92% %98 Zs %106 0l 240
%06'8 Iy'€l0'9vS %8¢ L1 96°cpr9'cl$ %GS G €0'86€°LECS %G6 91 LE LY 8PS %9 ¥l 88 %CZ 94 8l 2JeJIPBN J9SIRY
%890 20°1£5'e$ %6¢2'C 21'908°L$ %120 66'682'0L$ %000 000% %990 v %000 0 1BOIpoW Josiey
%y’ ¥e LN AR A TARS %LEVE 11'G61L'61$ %¥8'G 20'6€1'68% %9¢'9 G6'651'8L$ %8Y°'G £e %le9 L Jasiex
%89V 0.€€2'v2$ %<C9'} 11°282'L$ %0L'S l¥'290'2.8% %CC'S €.'806'v1$ %S1'9 L€ %lv'G 9 Aed ajeaud
%E8'6Z CLSEY'YGLS %0v'2Z 66°069'LL$ %LL8 82'GlL6'cElL$ %0€°01 0c'9zv'6cs %468 12°] %1801 [43 ayueinsuj
%8¢'L €8'60L°LE$ %L6'V 16°126'€$ %98 Gel9L'eeLs %869 6V v6'61$ %v16 gs %Ll L 8 OWH 1eJ-IpaW
%EE’L 10'888°9% %S¥0 £6'65¢$ %11 L08EY'LLS %99°¢C ¥5°009'L$ %91} L %0L2 € 1eo-1pow
%L2'E 16'016'9L$ %Ly LZyvl'es %6€ v ¥2°190'29% %6.'C 91'€L6'L$ %6V'¥ lZ %0142 € OWH 21edIpayy
%vZ' 8l L0°L2v'v68 %0661 98'GLL'G)1$ %€S 6€ 6.°29¢'€09¢% %G8 LE ¥5°151'801$ %0.L 0% 174 %V9'6€ 144 al1edlpay
alA 1elol sjuawied 1e301 alA leloL | sebiaeyd jejor lelo1 QlA le10L | 'S109V [€j0) le10) $)UN02IY
40 Juassad ojeq oy seap | Jojuedciag sjuswhed j0jusded | ayeqoyeas | jojuasied sabieyn j03ussiad | ajeg oltear | jJojuasiad [0 sequinN | ssejd |eidueul

610Z 19QWAAON




s - -

wittmanenzerprises

INVOICE 19120247

TO: Ross Valley RPA
FROM: Wittman Enterprises
DATE: January 17, 2020
FOR: Billing Services Performed in December 2019

Gross Collections $ 87,210.67
$ -
Less Refunds $ 2,286.79
Net Collections $ 84,923.88
Fee Based on 3.99% of Net Collections $ 3,388.46

CURRENT MONTH BALANCE: §  3,388.46

Prior month (November) balance: $  2,856.69

TOTAL AMOUNT: §  6,245.15

Wittman Enterprises, LLC | 11093 Sun Center Drive, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 | 800.906.6552 ph | 916.381.5047 fax | www.webillems.com



08°F26°001 $ Yiuow
Jod syuamileg
adeIaAy
PEIOT'LIE S uow sad
sadaey) IFwIdAy
%09°L01 ANNIATY
1IN 40
ADVINIOTAL
: o ~ alri
%100 %¥9°0 %bL'T %81'1€ %490 %T8'1€ %L6'8T %LTT %Sy'L %6501 %I1L°08 AANIATL IO
ADVINIOHIL
alri
1§°22C S| 681ZsvT S| S8 EOVVOI § | ¥6689°981°1 $ | 19°LOVHT $ | SSL60IITT  $ | ¥T006TOI'T $ | 96°LSH'98 $1+T119°¢8T $ | 01'601°COF § | €5LEC°0E6'T S | LO9I908°E § |STVLOL ALVd
— . OL ¥ViA
9L E6E Py § | 90871 AN - $ | 88°€76'48 $16L98TC $|L901Z°L8 ${sTIl6LEl  §| €b968°1 $ [ sovzell $leroLsve $|86€o¥'SLT S| ¥8S91°19€  $ | 61, 4AGWIOEA
08'ST0'¢6€ § - $[(86901) g |61SIT6 $]6196S1L $]IvELEL  $[096968L $ ] ssLIv'EL $ 1 LL96SL $]9691L 12 $| ¥6€L9°9¢ $ | SOIEE'OPT $ | LTIEL'SST  $ | 61, YTEWIAON
STEIE00F S| 800 $]099¥S'T $]|00660°T $|65LTL°88 $ - $ | 65LTL'88 $ | 0L'620°88 $ | Lsopr'Tl $]6971STC  $]05S09v'6C $ | 00069°LST § [ 9reeiole § 61, 4490100
99°959°s0F § | £5°C $ - $|6€ELY'L §| €1°50S'V8 $ - $ | €1'505°y8 $ | vLIY0'101  § | 90°€6T'L $ | £€709L°¢C1 $ | SSYETIE ${ T8YOI°091 $ | 0S¥6P'EIE  § | 61, JAGNTLJIS
16°065°96€ § - $ - $16L901°T1 $|85086611 § - $ | 85086611 $ | $5°868°06 $ | L6'SYT'ST $|sco6l'cl S| sk16Eve §| ITL68'EEL $ [ €6'€29°48T 61, 1SNONV
EL6LLLEY S| LO6 $|91scy $lo6Liv'e slorLo6cyl S| Lv819°T  § | LSSTS'SPE $ | 1¥'6v6'96 $|960Zs°L $191081°0C $|T09¥8°LT $|90+96'0L1 $ | 1909¥°6ZE $ 6L AT
LY'ILS'I6F $ | 00°ST $ - $vepLI'S $ | OL'ELT'S6 $ - $ | OLELT'S6 $ | €TvTr'001  $| €4'968°1 $ 81979 $ | S6L0L'Ly $| 11'950°0L1 $ [ OI'9vE’9SE  § 61, ANM
88°08S°16v § - Sl IL688'Y $100T7€9°¢ §|9E¥LE96 $ - 3 | 9€'4TE°96 § | zeoszool  §| €lLsey S 8S¥68°97  § | EIEPS'SE S| SPPEPILL $ | ISSBP'8EE S 61, AVIN
€L°991°96% - $lorssy'y $|yT1EC8  $ | £90£9°98 $|L6L96r $| 0986516 $ | L69OT'EIT  § | 16'8LS°S S| epo06'sT  § | pI'195'ST $ | €8°6Eb°0L $ [ 8TE6SOPE S 6L TRIdV|
6L9LETSP $ | 0T0 $ - $]sL088's $|[SEVLE96 $ - § | SEVL6'96 $ | 0915189 $ | pre61°01 S| 1L6vL'6E  $| £6909'0¢ S| €SHOETST $ | 1T7900°10€ 61, HRIVIA
60'080°L1S $ | 00°S1 $ | 65vEL’s § | voves8T $|6L601°501  $[£6091°L §|9L0LTTIL $ | 1T56T°S8 $ | 89'610°C /6800697 S$[ITVI9El $| 06v61%P1I $ | 680£0TLZ  $| 61 AYVNIE]
0E'8PI'ILS § | LSTE $18ICI8y | 55869°F1 §|PO9ELEll  § - $ | ¥99eL'ell S| I18LIYLY $ | 19°81%°01 $]1€L0T6T  $]|S1668SS $| 6596 TLT $ | LP6EEOIE § 61, AAVNVI
FONVIVE ([SINAWLSArdv S440 S440 SLNIWAVA LIN SANN4ATA SINAWAVA [SIDYVHO LIN|SNMOQ ALRIM SNMOa SNMOd SNAMOa SIAVHO
d/V AAN CRAR.V.\N ALTAM TVALOVIEINOD JLM ALM ALEM
L93a avy HIHLO INAJISTA TVON AAVON

s|ejol ALRIOHLINY JIA3INVHVd AT TIVA SSOY




%0€°56 INNTATA
LAN J0
FOVINIDUAL
ali
%100 %¥T0 %99°1 %95 6T %0¥°0 %96°6T %0'lE %06°1 %66°S %0501 %850S ANNIAZH JO
AOVINIADYAL
aLx
19°561 $]0€TTE6 S§|IEShre9 $| €161L°9T1T $ | €T891°ST § | 9C°L88° I¥I'T  $ | 10TOETBI'L $ | €V 11S°TL $ | €€9LE'STT  $ | YOYOE00F $ | YL'618°LT6T § | STYLETISE § | STVLOL ALV
OL ¥VIA
97°0L9°'8cy $ | 90°8F1 $ - $ - $ | 88°€78°¥8 $|6L98TC $|L901ILS $]osy98orl  $ | €v968°1 $ | 8L€0LS S| SULETYE $| 86€9¥'SLT  $ | ¥8°S91°19¢  § | 61, dHAWHIIA
8518°78€ - $ - $ [ 096¥0°6  $ | 9€TC8'89 $ 506589 §| 1+7189°6L S | ¥9 168 L $ | eV Oy9L $|LreTeor $ | 89°SEb9E § | STSHYOVL  § | LT9ELS8T  § | 61, YHHWHAON
06'19¥'s8€ $ | 800 $1099vs’T $OI'IS6T $ | 1€€0Y'88 $ - $ | 1£°€0v°'88 $ | 8V 'ELEYE $ | $6'879°9 $16921STC  $|0S09v'6T $ | ¥SLSI'LST $ | OFEEI0OIE  § 61, 4980100
17'686°€8C § | €ST $ - $ | 6E€ELYL S| 50896°18 $ - $ 15089618 $ | LEE6S901 | €ETT66S $ | S6¥19%6 g erezl‘ie $] 8491091 § [ 0svev'ele  § | 61, ATAWHLIAS
S64€8°99¢ § - $ - $]osveo0l $|0TTHOLIT  § - $ | 0TTYOLIL $ | 61'520°96 $ | OLPEEEL HIELI $ | LEOTY'YE $ | 1TLESEE]  $ | €6'€TYLBT  § 61, 1SNONV
97'98¥'86¢  $ |(92°0) $|91'sTr $I0L691'c $|¥SLO9LEL S| SHIIST $ | 66811°0v1 $ | 88°06L°901 $ | STEIL'S SlvLeie’st  $]09768°5C $| pI'S69°SLT  $ | 19°09p°6ZE  § 61 ATNS
¥T'868°ZEY $ | 0051 $ - S | E¥SPI'E  $ | 96'986°€6 $ - $]96986€6 $ [ 6T609°€01  $ | E968°T $vLsel’'ce  $| €588’ Ly § | 11°9S0°0LT  § | O1'9¥E9SE  § 61, ANNS
YE60V'9TY $ - $|LT8€r'T S| TEOTY1 S| 90vTELS $ - $ [ 90bTELS $ | pE8TEO0L  § | €1LSEY § 1 €61£9°07 | 19°€TL'SE § | OI'SKPPILL  $ | ISS8Y'BEE  § 6L AVIN
S9E9TLIY § - $ | LTS6S g erTro’e S| €1'€L9°L8 $[9lsLy $ | 65°8¥1°88 $ | TL60TSTL  § | TETEV Y $10S€EoV'El  $| ¥8TBH'ST $ | €9VO6'ILT  § | 10°ESSOVE  § 6L TRV
9L ¥9E'E8E $ | 0T0 $ - $]Tr9esT | 6L17€°88 $ - $ | 6L 1TE88 $ 17671678 $ [ 1921201 S 19LbE¥T S| €1LYSTE $ | 00L86°0S1T  $ | LTVIDIOE  § 61, HOUVIN
S$LOE'T6E § | 00°ST sloocig’e glzzsizel $|LEIPPI01 § | 8LSE0°E  § | SILLYWOL $ | T9'ST9's8 $ | 66TH0T S 89IVIPT  $| 9E6KSEl $ | YOEPIOVI  § | 69T00TLT  $ | 61 AUVNIHIA
80P9'cTy § | 00°SI $ - $| ypv08’L $ | 8I'F0E°68 $ - $ | 8110568 $ | 90°SL0°S9 $ | 96TvLs S| 851810 $ | ¥L'868°CS $ | TO6S6LOL | 96LSESIE  § 61, AAVNVS
AONVIVE [SINTWLSArdv SA40 SA40 PINIWAVd LIN SANNATA SINFWAVd [SEDOYVHD LAN| SNMOJ FLIIM SNMOd SNAMOd SNAMOd SIDAVHD
q/V MAN CANE. 0\ ALIEAM TVALOVILNOD CAAR. 7N ALram ALIIM
143d avd JIHLO INAAISHA TVIONW TAVON

¥IOM MaN Adjjep SSOY




%ES'SL- ANNAATH
LAN A0
ADVINIDYAL
o alLi
%¥S 0 %95 90¢- %1ELT8- 2%95°60Z1- %SE 981~ %16°S6€1- %9%'1091 %6C 18T %P0 V111~ %SESS- %8L 05" ANNIATT 4O
AOVINADYAL
arLi
06'9C $165661CL $| vSBI0'IF $| 180L66S  $|8E6ET6 $ | 6101T69 $ [(LLiov'sl) 8| esov6'el S| 16v€Tss S| ovvbLT $|6LLIST $[(808S6Y)  §[STIVIOLALVA
) OL ¥VIA
orezL’s $| - BIEEARI S $ | 00001 $| - $ | 00001 $ [(sTes6'D) $| - $].z029T  §]86Tce $| - $] - $ | 61, 939N30IA
wysor §| - 3 ](86901)  $| 6591 $ | €8°€LLT ${9crIs ${61'88C°¢ $ [(60'vLy' 1) $ [(99°¢h) $ | 69°¢€6€°1 $ | 9T8¢€C g [lozvil) § - $ | 61, JIGWIAON
SeIssyl §| - s - s|¥8Lbl  $ | 8THLE s| - $ | sTvie $|(8Lebe9)  $]|T91I8S $| - s - B $| - $| 61, ¥390LD0)
STL99IT §| - HE e $|80LesT s - $1]80LEST $ [(€915s'S) ${ €800¢°1 s|sesviy  §|zvsol $| - s - $ | 61, Y99I 1daS
96'SsL6T $| - $! - $|6TTUYT $|8E8E6T $ - $ | 8£8€6T $ [(P99T1°5) ${LTII61 $]6THHCTE $ |(z6'82) $ - $ - $ 61, 1SNONV|
LTe6T'6E $| €€6 $] - $]9T8¥T'y $ | 956675 $ | zoLo1 $ | 8S90¥'S $ [(Ly'198°6) $ ] 1L1sL1 $ | 998y sleryse'l  $]7689T1 § - $ 61, AN
£TEL8S $| - $| - $115920CT $ | pL'98T1 $ - $ | $L98T°1 $ [(90's81°¢) $ - $ | ¥9°590°c $| rell $ - $ - $ 61, ANNS|
PSILIS9 $| - S| vrivy'T $[8911T°T $|0£0006 $ - $ | 0£°000°6 $ |[(Trzy) $| - $ | sTe9T $ 18v081)  §|(s901) $ - $ 61 AV
80'€06'8L $| - $]686s8°¢ $|11681'S §[(08THO1) $ 1826V $ | 100Sb°c $ [(sczor'zl)  $| 659801 $|leeTvv'zt  $foeseL $ [(o8vot'1) $| LToF $ 61, TRIdV
£0'ZI066 $| - $| - $|ecrree S| 957598 $ - $ 1 957759 g [(TeeoLy)  $ [(L1'+vD) slorzov'st g l{oTove’l) $|escie’t  §[(908) $ 6L HOIVIW
yToLL'stt $| - $|6sLI¥'T $|T8BIESI $ | TH'899°C $l6l'stiy $]19¢€6L°L $ [(1+'0gg) $ [(1e'€D) $[1z59LT $|s8¥9 $ [(visvvD) $] 0T8T $| 61 AdvNIgad
SV LOS'LYL $ | LSL] $|81cis’y $| 114689 $| ovTer+T $ - $ | oavTEr T $ [(szLso'Ll)  $]s9sLIT $ | £L°520°s $| 170007 $|L69cv'e ¢ [(6v810°C) § 61, AMVANV[
AONVIVE [SINTWISArav, S440 SI40  BINIWAVA LIN SANAITA SINAWAVd [STOYVHD LAN|SNAMOJ ALRM |  SNAMOd SNMOd SNAAOA SADAVHD
WV MAN LM AL TVALDVEINOD| dLRM LM ALRIAM
lgaaavd HAHLO INAQISTY TVONW TAVOW

310M PIO A3jjep ssoy




%SL 001 FANTATY
LiAN 40
AOVINIDUIA
aLA
%100 %ST0 %€0¢T %0F 1€ %590 %S$0°TE %91 1€ %SLT %S %62 01 %9€ 05 ANNIATYE 4O
ADVINIDUA
aLAx
VL6581 $ | STEEOY $ | €ETIESE $ | LYOFOT6S S | L9BLITI S| PI6I6V09 S| OTSHTSSS $ | 9L'€66'1S S| v6¥89T0l S| 659LIF6I $ | I 11S0S6 $ | 19%19°L88°1 $ |STVIOLILVA
- Ol ¥ViA
- $ - $ - 0Z. ANNT
- $ - B 0% AVA
- B - $ 0z, T4V
- $ - $ 0Z. HOAVIA
] - $ - $ 0z, A¥vnadad
- $ - $ 0z, AAVONVI
9LE6E PPy § | 90'8PI $ oLt §| - $|88€c6¥8 S| 6L98TCT $|L90ITLS §|STil6LEl  $ | £v'968°1 $ | S0VTEll  $| CIOLSYE $ | 86€9v'SLT S | PBSOI'I9E  § | 61, HAAWHDAA
08520°c6E S| - $ [(8€901) $|61SIT6 $|619651L  $| IVELEL S| 096963L $|SSLIVEL  §| LL965L $[9691L°1C  §| ¥6'€L99¢ $ | SOIEE 9yl $ | LTIEL'SBT _ § | 61, HAEWNIAON
STEIE00F § | 800 $|099vST $|00660T $|65LIL88 _ §| - $ | 65LTL88 $|0L62088 S | LSOMYTI $[69TISTL_ $| 0509v'6C $ | 00069°ZSI §$ | 9Or€el 0l $| 61, 94980100
99959750 § | €5¢ s - $|6eeLvL S| EISOSPS | - $ | 1505 b8 S| PLIP0TI01  $ | 90°€6TL S| €C09LEl S| SSPETIE $ | C8POL09L § | 0SPEPEIE S | 61, daANALITS
1606596€ $| - $| - $|6L901T1 $ 85086611 S| - $ 85086611 5586806 S| L6SKTSI S| SLO6IEl S| SyleEve $ | ITL6SEEl § | €6€C9LT § 61, 1LSNONV
EL6LLLEY $ | L06 $ 9IStk $ | 96LIVL $|01L062k] S| LVSIOT S| LSSTssvl S| IV6¥696  § | 960T5L $[91081°0 S| T09¥8LT $ | 90¥969L1 $ | 1909¥ 62 $ 61 AN
FINVIVE [SINTWISNfAv| sdd0 S440  PINIWAVA LIN SANNJZY | SINIWAVd [SIDUVHD LAN|SNMOU ZLRIM | SNMOd SNAMOd SNAMOd SISAVHD
WY MIN ALIEM ALAM TVALDVIINOD|  ALI¥M ALIAM ALIEM
141d avd WAHLO LINIAISTY TYOW AAVOW

02-61 4e3A |edsid SN AojleA ssoy




%00°004 ¥1°616'v093% %00°00} 19°042°288% %0000} 19'719°288°1$ | %00°00} ¥8°691°19€8 %00°00} [x 74 %00°00} i Iejol
%000 00°0$ %00°0 00°0$ %00°0 00°0$ %000 00°0$ %000 0 %000 0 suny Aig
%0000} ¥1°616'709$ %00°001 19012'28% %00°00L 19¥19°288'1$ |%00°001 ¥8°G91'19€$ %00°001 (%7 %00°001 34 jejol gng

%160 SLOVL'LLS %200~ 0¥ 29%- sojeg J0ld
%SC L 80°695°L$ %SS0 +¥8'L8v$ %168 12°292'891% %6.L°0} €.°896'8€$ %206 19 %v9°0L +1% P40
%256 8€'619'26% %ECTEL 16 LPSLLS %8191 G1'62€'60€$ %1881 Z11€6',9% %1L2°Sl €Ll %EL LY 14 24edipaiy Jasiey]
%9L°0 Zy'8L9'vs %ST’L 0¥'L80°L$ %ZL'0 LY 19G'ELS %LL0 Y LLL'eS %.9°0 S %LL°0 I [edipapy Josiey
%16°€C 16'¥29'vPLS %88°0¢C €6CL2'81LS %88'S 19'226'0LL$ %€0'9 66°26.L'12$ %SG 84 %L9°G 8 Josiey
%YE'v €9'€22'02Z¢ %vE'T €6'6£0'Z$ %129 Y9GET'LLLS %SE'8 L1'891'0€$ %6S°9 6% %158 cl Aed dyeALd
%Ly 82 €oeELT'2LLS %6€°02 1G'8LL°LLS %SS'8 16°22v'191$ %29 L €2215'42$ %SL'8 g9 %08 L 4 adueinsuy
%0¢€°L 66°09L'v¥$ %0V L oLISP'98 %ZV'8 ¥5L18'8519 %S6°9 62°0+1'G2$ %SL'8 g9 %60°L ol OWH 18D-I1P3N
%9¢€°L Zr'e0e'ss %S’ IWwSLE'LS %7260 208e¥'LLS %000 00°0$ %¥6°0 L %00°0 0 120-1po°W
%66'C 1L90'8L$ %¥eL vLGOL'LS %<C6'€ G9296'€L$ %16} 16°506'0% %¥0'¥ [03% %EL'T € OWH d1e21po
%01°02 16'295'12L$ %CL'LE ¥8°6E1L'L2$ %8E 6¢ LG°GEV'EVLS %8L°8€ 8L°2L0'0¥1$ %\LS 0% 10€ %CL'6E 96 aJedipaw
QLA 12301 sjuewhed leloL aLAEol |seBaeysjelor |  rejol QLA 1e10L | "s300V [ej0) 1e0L S)UN02oY
Jjojuadiad | eyeqojdes) | jojuadieg sjuowied Jojusoiad | ereq oyaeap | jojussiag sobseys jojuadsad | aleq o3 deap | jojuasiag |jo sequinN | ssep) jeroueury

6102 43quiadag

Vdd A9jjeA ssoy
ajeq 0} Jea A |edsi4 pue Atpuop
poday Arewnwung juswabeuepy




	RVPA-MCFD Subcontract.final.pdf
	Recitals
	Subcontract
	SECTION 1.  Term Of This Subcontract
	SECTION 2.  Earlier Subcontracts Superseded
	SECTION 3.  MCFD As Independent Contractor
	SECTION 4.  Conformance With 1999 Contract
	SECTION 5.  Terms Defined
	SECTION 6.  Services To Be Rendered
	SECTION 7. Compensation For Services Rendered
	SECTION 8.  Performance Review
	SECTION 9.  Health & Safety Concerns
	SECTION 10.  EMS Policies & Procedures
	SECTION 11.  Vehicle & Records Inspections
	SECTION 12.  Changes To Applicable Federal Or State Statutes
	SECTION 13.  Changes To 1999 Agreement Affecting This Subcontract
	SECTION 14.  Hold Harmless & Indemnification
	SECTION 15.  Insurance

	SECTION 16.  Conflict Of Interest
	SECTION 17.  Assignability
	SECTION 18.  Dispute Resolution Process
	SECTION 19.  Default
	SECTION 20.  Equal Opportunity & Non-Discrimination
	SECTION 21.  Termination
	SECTION 22.  Amendments
	SECTION 23.  Breach & Enforcement
	SECTION 24.  Severability
	SECTION 25.  Governing Law
	SECTION 26.  Parties’ Representations
	SECTION 27.  Binding Upon Successors
	SECTION 28.  Headings
	SECTION 29.  Consent
	SECTION 30.  Designated Representatives
	SECTION 31.  Notices
	SECTION 32.  Appendices
	SECTION 33.  Execution In Counterparts
	SECTION 34.  Effective Date
	APPENDIX A
	APPENDIX B
	APPENDIX C
	APPENDIX D
	APPENDIX E
	APPENDIX F
	APPENDIX H


